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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM") OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a high investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for
the contents of this report, makes no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Sing Lee Software
(Group) Limited (the “Company”) (the “Directors”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having
made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief the information contained in this
report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this
report misleading.
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Corporate Information
NAEEH
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Sing Lee Software
(Group) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”), | would like to present
herewith the 2012 Annual Report of the Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

Core business of the Group - RUNPOS (soft POS)

The Group’s sales volume in 2012 jumped by a fold over
the previous year. The growth was mainly attributable to the
substantial increase in contract sum along with the inclusion
of one of the principal activities of the Group — POS MIS as
a finalist into the Agricultural Bank of China. Remarkable
progress was attained in sales of the Group’s RUNPOS (soft
POS) second-generation products — namely, “Bank-Hospital
Express”, “Bank-Business Express” and “Bank-School Express”
during the year. The three core products accounted for more
than 80% of the Group's total sales. More importantly, a vast
number of customers from these projects will be gradually
integrated into the Group and will be converted into online
customers of the Group’s third-generation products, thus
creating a broader market base for the Group’s mobile payment
business. According to the statistics of China UnionPay, the
Group ranks at the forefront of share in POS MIS user terminal
market across the country.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

Along with the Group's effort to seamlessly integrate the online
and offline operations of RUNPOS (soft POS) second and third-
generation products during the year, there was a continued
increase in costs in a number of spectrums, stretching from
human resources, innovative technology R&D to marketing
efforts. The Group thus incurred losses during the year. Against
this backdrop, as noted from the financial data for the whole
year, there was a sharp fall in our losses and a substantial
increase in sales revenue. We consider that all these efforts
will be strategically indispensable for us to sustain the long-
term development and strengthening our core competitiveness.
The Group’s management at all levels will carefully evaluate all
different-sized projects and will reinforce risk exposure control,

thereby ensuring the effectiveness and success of each project.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express
sincere gratitude to all shareholders for their enduring support
and to all employees for their loyalty and dedication. In
addition, | would also like to extend heartfelt thanks to our
partners, customers, suppliers and bankers for their trust and
support in the Group.

Hung Yung Lai
Chairman

25 March 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EERENWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the development and sales
of information and network technologies and services to the
financial industry in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (“the financial
year"”), the Group recorded a total revenue of approximately
RMB36,080,000, representing an increase of 92% as
compared to last year (2011: revenue were approximately
RMB18,840,000).

B %5 O R
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Revenue of the Group comprises of: REEMNEEHBBRE
Revenue
2012 2011
—B-CZF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥FTT AR TF T
Sales of software products $HE S E 2,224 1,612
Sales of related hardware products HEMRBEHER 1,380 1,250
Provision of software-related technical TR X AR B Bl

support services TR 32,476 15,978
36,080 18,840

Loss of the financial year was approximately RMB11,334,000
compared with loss of approximately RMB37,483,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2011. The effect on the results
of the Group for the financial year is mainly attributable to
the considerable increase of approximately RMB17,240,000
in revenue for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the
decrease in share-based payment expenses arising from the
grant of share option in February 2011 of approximately
RMB23,253,000 recorded for the year ended 31 December
2011.

We will continue trying our best to increase sales and
strengthen our cost control. With the products of our group
becoming more mature in the market and the effective cost
control, we expect that financial results of the group will be
improved in the coming year.

RERFEZEBEELN B AREE11,334,0007T
Mz ——F+-_A=1T—HLFEZ
E 18 B A A R 37,483,000 - A& B 2 3R F
EEEBEZVEFERABE-_ZT—ZF+=
A=Z+—BALEFERAPBEMNOARE
17,240,000t R EREURODEZHBERR=F
——F+ A=+ ALEBR-_T——F=
AREBREMSEUBRNEINERHARE
23,253,0007T °
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWE DM

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2012, the Group's bank loans amounted to
approximately Nil (2011: RMB43,244,000, which bear interest
at rate of Hong Kong Dollar Inter Bank Offered Rate plus 3.3%
per annum) and loans from a shareholder of approximately
RMB34,423,000, which bear interest at 3.3% - 3.5% per
annum (2011: RMB25,802,000, which bear interest rate of
3.3% per annum).

No interest was capitalized by the Group during the year (2011:
Nil).

As at 31 December 2012, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents denominated in RMB, US dollars and HK
dollars, amounted to approximately RMB19,147,000 (2011:
RMB22,085,000).

The gearing ratio of the Group, based on total liabilities over
total assets, as at 31 December 2012 was approximately 98%
(2011: 89%).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year, there was no change to the share capital of
the Company. As at 31 December 2012, the total number of
issued ordinary shares of the Company was 811,840,000 shares
(2011: 811,840,000 shares).

ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

The group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies, or significant investments
during the year.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Segmental information is presented for the Group as disclosed
on note 6 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had 243 employees
(2011: including both the PRC and Hong
Kong employees. Remuneration and bonus policy are basically

286 employees),

determined by the performance of the individual employees
and financial results of the Group. Total staff costs for the
year amounted to approximately RMB24,100,000 (2011:
RMB44,469,000).

The Group adopted a share option scheme, details of which
were set out in the Report of the Directors.

CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2012, the Group did not have any charges
on group assets.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND EXPECTED SOURCE OF FUNDING

Details of the Group's future plans for material investments or
capital assets and their expected source of funding have been
stated in the Company’s prospectus dated 30 August 2001
under the sections headed “Statement of Business Objectives”
and “Reasons for the New Issue and Use of Proceeds”

respectively.

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE FLUCTUATION

The Group's revenue generating operations are mainly
transacted in RMB. The directors consider the impact of foreign
exchange exposure to the Group is minimal.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (2011: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWE DM

PROSPECTS OF NEW PRODUCTS HERWAI=

Please refer to the Chairman’s Statement for a discussion on BETwELH I FREEHN TR
this.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF THE FEFENTERE
GROUP

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

HE-2--F HE-T——% HEZZ (EZTTNF HEZSTN\E
+= =

t=A=t-8 +-A=t-8 t-8 foASt-B +ZA=f-A
LER LEE L5E LEE L5E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB 000

AREFL ANEETT ARETT NEBTT ARB T

Revenue HEBA 36,080 18,840 15,435 41,417 18,214
Loss attributable to shareholders REEEESR (11,334) (37,483) (63,664) (1,547) (8,454)
Total assets EELE 44,736 90,135 62,760 36,432 25,380
Total liabilities AERE (44,002) (79,839) (40,675) (34,282) (25,948)
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(Bf)FE 734 10,296 22,085 2,150 (568)
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

EERNGREEBZERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hung, Yung Lai, aged 68, the Chairman of our Group
and the director of Strategic Development Committee. Mr.
Hung, who graduated from Shanghai Conservatory of Music,
is also among the founders of the Group. He is in possession
of more than 30 years’ company management and strategy
programming experience and over 20 years' successful
experience in managing high-tech companies; hence he is
familiar with the China business management and marketing
planning. Mr. Hung is now in charge of the Group’'s macro-
strategy and the enterprise’s development.

Mr. Cui, Jian, aged 59, a Director and Vice Chairman of our
Group. Mr. Cui is one of the founders of Hangzhou Singlee
Software Co., Ltd. and has been working for our Group since
its founding in 1993. Mr. Cui is responsible for the investment
programming of the Group. Before joining the Group, he
used to work for China Hangzhou Automatization Research
Institute and Hangzhou Huayuan Computer Application
Research Institute as director and president of their Developing
Departments.

Mr. Hung Ying, aged 43, a Director of our Group, had been
the deputy general manager of Hangzhou Singlee Technology
Co., Ltd. and Hangzhou Singlee Software Co., Ltd of the Group
from April 2007 to April 2011. Prior to joining the Group, he
had worked as the marketing director and general manager in
Beijing San Ding Ti lian Network Technology Company Limited
from May 2001 to December 2005. Mr. Hung graduated in
information, social and management sciences (majoring in
business administration) from University of Paisley and obtained
an EMBA from Peking University. Mr. Hung has several years
of experiences in management, and is specialized in market
planning and sales. Mr. Hung is the son of Mr. Hung Yung Lai,
the chairman and executive director of the Company.
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEEZBE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND
AUDITING COMMITTEE

Mr. Pao, Ping Wing, Jp, aged 65, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
December 2003. He had been actively serving on government
policy and executive bodies, including those relating to town
planning, urban renewal, public housing and environment
matters for 24 years. He has been appointed as a Justice of the
Peace of Hong Kong since 1987. He was an ex-urban councilor.
He obtained a Master of Science Degree in Human Settlements
Planning and Development from the Asian Institute of
Technology in Thailand in 1980. He was elected as one of the
Ten Outstanding Young Persons of Hong Kong in 1982 and one
of the Ten Outstanding Young Persons of the World in 1983.
He is an independent non-executive director of Oriental Press
Group Limited, New Environmental Energy Holdings Limited,
UDL Holdings Limited, Zhu Zhou CSR Times Electric Co. Ltd.,
Soundwill Holdings Limited and Maoye International Holdings
Limited, all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Tam, Kwok Hing, aged 65, an independent non-executive
director of the Group, is the fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was the founding
partner of Wongs & Tam, Certified Public Accountants, a public
accounting firm in Hong Kong, set up in 1973 and is now a
consultant of the accounting firm.

Mr. Lo, King Man, sss, Jp, aged 75, an independent non-
executive director of the Group. Mr. Lo began his career in
academic administration at the University of Hong Kong and
became deputy director of the former Hong Kong Polytechnic
in 1986. He was also appointed director of the Hong Kong
Academy for performing arts in 1993. Mr. Lo is the Justice of
Peace in Hong Kong, and he has an extensive record of public
service. He has also served on the governing or executive
bodies of numerous educational and cultural organizations.
He was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star in 2012. He was
appointed as independent non-executive director of Chow Sang
Sang Holding Int’l Ltd. in September 1994.
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

EERNGREEBZERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chang, Loong Cheong, aged 66, is the Chief Consultant
of the Group. Mr. Chang is currently a director of World
Target Properties (Shanghai) Limited; the executive director
of Xinhua News Media Holdings Limited (a company listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange); an independent non-
executive director, chairman of audit committee and member
of nominating committee of China Technology Development
Group Corporation (a company listed in US) and a director of
Jadelink Hotel Shanghai. Mr. Chang served as an executive
member of senior management of Orient Overseas Container
Line, Ltd. and Island Navigation Corporation International Ltd.;
a director and general manager of Noble Ascent Company Ltd;
a director of Shanghai Xinhua Iron & Steel Co, Ltd; a director
of Oriental International (Shanghai) Ltd.; an independent non-
executive director, chairman of audit committee and member
of remuneration Committee of Guangshen Railway Company
Limited (a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
New York Stock Exchange and Shanghai Stock Exchange).

Mr. Tong, Tsz Kwan, aged 33, is the Financial Controller and
the Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Tong holds a Master
of Business Administration Degree in Finance from University of
Southern Queensland. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a Certified Public
Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Tong is a fellow member of The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and a fellow member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries. Prior to
joining the Group in June 2007, he has accumulated over
several years of accounting, auditing and financing experience.
He is now responsible for accounting, financing and company
secretarial duties.
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Report of the Directors

EEWES

The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report
and the audited financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Group are the development and
sale of information and network technologies and services to
the financial industry in the PRC. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during
the year.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 31
to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group's revenue and contribution to the loss
from operation by principal activities and geographical area of
operations for the year ended 31 December 2012 is set out in
note 6 to the financial statements.

RESULTS

The results for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 48.

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment
of dividend.
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Report of the Directors

EEWES

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The 2013 AGM is scheduled to be held on Friday, 10 May
2013. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at
2013 AGM, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Wednesday, 8 May 2013 to Friday, 10 May 2013,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
of the Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at 2013 AGM, unregistered holders of shares
of the Company should ensure that all the share transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the share registrar of the Company in Hong
Kong, Tricor Abacus Limited, 26/F., Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Tuesday, 7 May 2013.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A Summary of the published results and assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the audited financial statements, is set out on page 10 of the
annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out on page 50 and page 128
respectively.

DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations were made by the Group
during the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group and the Company during the year are set out in note
14 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors
EE®REE

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company's share capital and share options
scheme are set out in note 26 and note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws or the law of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Pursuant to the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda, share premium
of the Company is distributable to the shareholders. At 31
December 2012, the company had no reserve available for
distribution to equity of the company (2011: Nil).

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of purchases and sales for the year ended 31
December 2012 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

Purchases
20% (2011: 47%)
30% (2011: 96%)

— the largest supplier
— five largest suppliers combined

Sales
12% (2011: 27 %)
38% (2011: 60%)

— the largest customer
— five largest customers combined

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5%
of the Company's share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers stated above.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

So far as is known to any directors or chief executives of
the Company, as at 31 December 2012, shareholders (other
than directors or chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or, directly, or indirectly, interested in 5% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote on all circumstances at general meeting of any
other members of the Group or substantial shareholders as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

FERRREMALTRRE HERSD

REEZEZERRKXR

MARREMESHITHRBHAA R —=
F+ZRA=1+—H UTAREH %&Hﬂfﬂ%
BIEXVERSE2 ] 330 B XA M AR A #E 58
MARFIRGLABER G OEEAORE (KR
RIZEFHTHRAHGRIN KEEXRAEREM
HRFTEBR TR ASEEMEMA S QAR
RAREG EREZEMBERIRANEE 25% iR
BEHFMAEENE336KBFENELMA
A0 8%

(=) A2FABREEIOIBTZEBER

Number of shares held

EERMEER
Capacity/ Long Short Percentage of
Name of shareholder Nature of interest position position shareholding
BREEE 5%,/ g HE e BEREXEIH
Goldcorp Industrial Limited Beneficial interest 287,855,000 - 35.46%
EnEm (note 1)
(Ba1)
Great Song Enterprises Limited Corporate interest 287,855,000 - 35.46%
EE (notes 1 and 2)
(HaF1k2)
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Corporate interest 287,855,000 - 35.46%
RERELL FEED (notes 2 and 4)
(HiF2k4)
Beneficial owner 15,955,000 - 1.97%
EnBEAA
Ms. Li Kei Ling Corporate interest 287,855,000 - 35.46%
FHE L EEE R (notes 2 and 3)

(HtzF2723)
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Report of the Directors

EEWES

FTERRRHEMATRARND - HERH
RiEER 2 BRRKR (&)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (Cont’d)

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (=) AATEBREEIIEBTZZETER (&)
(Cont’d)

Number of shares held

18

EERMEER

Capacity/ Long Short Percentage of

Name of shareholder Nature of interest position position shareholding

BREERE g - b HE BE BERAEIH

Mdm lu Pun Family interest 368,810,000 - 45.43%
sk 2+ RXE#ER (note 5)
(Ht5)

UBS AG Interest of a controlled 45,000,000 - 5.54%
corporation (note 6)
b2 N (BtEt6)

Limex Co. Corporate interest 22,880,500 - 2.82%
EE R (note 7)
(H1327)

Ms. Li Ling Yu Corporate interest 22,880,500 - 2.82%
TEmzt EEEE (notes 7 and 8)
(HiiF7k8)

Beneficial owner 24,285,000 - 2.99%

BEREAA

Mr. Lee Chuan Teck Family interest 47,165,500 - 5.81%
TEBEE KB (note 9)
(Ha9)
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Report of the Directors

EEWES

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (Cont’d)

FTERRREMALTRARSD - HERH
REERBR KK (&)

(b) Share options (Z) B
Number of

Capacity/ Number of underlying
Name of shareholder Nature of interest options held shares
BRER B, REmER BEzEREHA HEROGHEE
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Beneficial interest 65,000,000 65,000,000
ARRENIE A& BafgEm
Notes:
1. Goldcorp Industrial Limited is a limited liability company incorporated Goldcorp Industrial Limited £ — [ 7 £ & B 20 B

in the British Virgin Islands equally owned by Mr. Hung Yung Lai and
Great Song Enterprises Limited which in turn is wholly owned by Ms
Li Kei Ling.

2. The Shares were held by Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

3. Ms. Li Kei Ling controls more than one third of the voting power of
Great Song Enterprises Limited which in turn holds more than one
third of the voting power of Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Ms Li Kei
Ling is deemed, by virtue of the SFO, to be interested in the same
287,855,000 shares held by Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

4. Mr. Hung Yung Lai controls more than one third of the voting power
of Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Mr. Hung Yung Lai is deemed, by
virtue of the SFO, to be interested in the same 287,855,000 shares
held by Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

5. These shares are beneficially owned by Goldcorp Industrial Limited
as mentioned in Note 4 of above. Mr. Hung Yung Lai is deemed
to be interested in the same 287,855,000 shares held by Goldcorp
Industrial Limited. Mdm Iu Pun is the wife of Mr. Hung Yung Lai and
is deemed to be interested in these shares in which Mr. Hung Yung
Lai is deemed or taken to be interested for the purpose of the SFO.
She is also deemed to be interested in the 65,000,000 share options
and the 15,955,000 shares beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Yung Lai
as mentioned in Note 4 above for the purpose of SFO.

ESAMRIZERETAR ARERMELER
Great Song Enterprises Limited bAAf & B% 4 £ @)
#A  fiGreat Song Enterprises LimitedBll i1 2=
HRZ+28HS -

Z 4t A% 1% B Goldcorp Industrial Limited$ & °

ZFH % L+ %IGreat Song Enterprises Limited
MR ZRBB =92 — W%+ AGoldcorp
Industrial Limited® & REBB =92 —-
ERBFRBERA FTHEHRE T HRE
% A Goldcorp Industrial Limitedfr s &
287,855,0000% A% 1) #9 18 A 1 2 °

AEER12 5 4 #5 8 Goldcorp Industrial Limited#9#%
RRBB=D2— ENEFRBAEKRD - AER
& 5% 4 3% 48 YE A Goldcorp Industrial Limited it
Fi 5 #9287,855,000% A% 1) 9 18 A 4 2 ©

% % M {7 @ Goldcorp Industrial Limited® z=
A R EXH 4T RERRE R AW R
£ B Goldcorp Industrial Limitedfr 5 A& 4
287,855,0000% f% 17 & 48 [Fl 4 25 © Wk 22 £ 7R A&
BEEENE T REZHFRAEEH  BHE
ERFRRRME L EWEER R RBEAZETRG K
TSP A AR o R ECHREARTI  RIBE S R
HERD - BRI EER RS R AW EERR
#¥E765,000,000/% #& i% 4 %2 15,955,000 A% (7
Ml R A -
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Report of the Directors

EEWES

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (Cont’d)

(b) Share options (Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont’d)

6. According to the disclosure of interests form submitted by UBS AG
on 22 October 2010 (the date of relevant event being 20 October
2010), these shares were held through a subsidiary of UBS AG. The
45,000,000 shares (long position) were held in the capacity of having
interest of a controlled corporation.

7. The shares were held by Limex Co., which is wholly owned by Ms. Li
Ling Yu.

8. Ms Li Ling Yu controls more than one third of the voting power
of Limex Co.. Ms Li Ling Yu is deemed, by virtue of the SFO, to be
interested in the same 22,880,500 shares held by Limex Co..

9. These shares are beneficially owned by Limex Co. as mentioned in
Note 8 of above. Ms Li Ling Yu is deemed to be interested in the
same 22,880,500 shares held by Limex Co.. Mr. Lee Chuan Teck is
the husband of Ms Li Ling Yu and is deemed to be interested in these
shares in which Ms Li Ling Yu is deemed or taken to be interested
for the purpose of the SFO. He is also deemed to be interested in the
24,285,000 shares beneficially owned by Ms. Li Ling Yu as mentioned
in Note 8 above for the purpose of SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, the directors
or chief executives of the Company were not aware of any
other person (other than directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was interested
in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meeting of any other member of the Group or any other
substantial shareholders as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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Report of the Directors

EEWES

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2012, the interests or short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of Laws of Hong
Kong (the “SFO")) which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which he/she
is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required to be entered into the register required
to be kept by the Company, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Shares in the Company:

EEREBRTHAERRKRND - HE KD
REEIEZERRKXR

R-F-——F+-A=1+—R REEFIHE
GRBIEXVEN D 7 R E8ER D B & A1) Bk
RAEBARRESE RITRARNANARHE
e EAEEEE (E& REHFMRERDIEXY
B (EBEPIFEST1E) )W HERNG KE
ks (BRRERER S BERDINZ
FHRXBEEREFRANRDENER) - HR
BEAHRBERAEIERETRRADFE
FRERMIARBEER EHHRAES46E
5.671RAMEGARNNRNT RE R ATH) s R FE R W
T

KRR :

all

Number of shares held

BFERHE
Capacity/ Long Short Percentage of
Name of directors Nature of interest position position shareholding
EEn 54 EmER HR HR FAEREXBEISH
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Corporate interest 287,855,000 - 35.46%
RRRMIS A R B (note 1)
(Biat1)
Beneficial owner 15,955,000 - 1.97%
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Report of the Directors

EEWES

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Cont’d)

Shares in associated corporation:

EERIBRTHAERRKR®D - HE KD
RiEERBERKRE (&)

HBCEE R

Number of ordinary shares held
in Goldcorp Industrial Limited

(note 2)
M Goldcorp Industrial Limited
FEEBERYE
(Byix2)
Capacity/ Long Short Percentage of

Name of directors Nature of interest position position shareholding
EEpng 540 EmER HR BRE FAEREXBEISL
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Personal interest 1 - 35.46%
RRRMAE ST (G ¥
Notes: Ve

1. The Shares were held by Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Mr. Hung Yung Lai has
50% interest in Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

2. The entire issued capital of Goldcorp Industrial Limited as of 31 December
2012 composed of 2 ordinary shares. Goldcorp Industrial Limited held
287,855,000 Shares in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares and
debenture of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Report of the Directors

EEWES

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted on 27 August 2001 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and eligible employees, and
has been expired on 27 August 2011. Under the Scheme,
the Board of Directors of the Company may grant options
to eligible employees, including directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company.
The Scheme would be valid and effective for a period of ten
years commencing on the adoption date and have come to its
expiration. All other respects of the provisions of the Scheme
shall remain in full force and holders of all options granted
under the Scheme prior to such expiry shall be entitled to
exercise the outstanding options pursuant to the terms of the
Scheme until expiry of the said options. As a result, a new share
option scheme which was approved on 28 February 2011 (the
“New Scheme"”), take effect immediately after the expiry of the
existing Scheme. The principal terms of the New Scheme are
similar with the Scheme.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
at the special general meeting of the Company held on 28
February 2011 (the “SGM"), the Scheme mandate limit was
refreshed so that the Company was authorized to grant share
options under the existing Scheme for subscription of up to a
total of 81,184,000 shares, representing approximately 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the
SGM.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
the exercise of options granted and to be granted to each
Participant (including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12 months period up to the date of grant must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue at the date of grant.

The subscription shall be a price determined by the board of
directors at its absolute discretion and shall not be less than the
higher of the closing price of the share on the date of grant of
the option and the average closing price of the shares for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the option.
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EEWES

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

Options granted shall be deemed to be accepted upon receipt
of the acceptance of offer letter from the grantee within 28
days from the offer date, together with a remittance in favour
of the Company of HK$1 by way of consideration for the grant.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during a period notified by the board
to each grantee but may not be exercised after the expiry of 10
years from the date of grant.

On 8 April 2002 the Company granted 60,230,000 options
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Scheme at
an exercise price of HK$0.614 per share to 163 employees
(including three executive directors) of the Group. Shares of the
Company were at closing price of HK$0.58 immediately before
the day on which options were granted.

On 1 June 2004 the Company granted 10,000,000 options to
subscribe for shares in the Company under the scheme at an
exercise price of HK$0.14 per share to 2 chief executives of the
Group. Shares of the Company were at closing price HK$0.14
immediately before the day on which options were granted.

On 9 October 2007 the Company granted 47,550,000 options
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Scheme at
an exercise price of HK$0.368 per share to its employees of
the Group. Shares of the Company were at closing price of
HK$0.36 immediately before the day on which options were
granted.

On 19 January 2010 the Company granted 20,900,000 options
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Scheme at
an exercise price of HK$0.20 per share to its directors and
employees of the Group. Shares of the Company were at
closing price of HK$0.20 immediately before the day on which
options were granted.
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EEWES

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

On 16 August 2010 the Company granted 8,990,000 options
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Scheme at
an exercise price of HK$0.84 per share to its employees of
the Group. Shares of the Company were at closing price of
HK$0.84 immediately before the day on which options were
granted.

On 10 January 2011, the Company granted 65,000,000 share
options to subscribe for shares in the company under the
Share Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.730 per
share to Mr. Hung Yung Lai, Chairman of the Group. Shares of
the Company were at closing price of HK$0.730 immediately
before the day on which options were granted. The grant of
share options to Mr. Hung Yung Lai and the specific mandate
to allot, issue and deal with the shares of the Company upon
conversion of the foregoing share options were approved by
the SGM held on 28 February 2011.

On 13 January 2011, the Company granted 19,260,000 share
options to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Share
Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.714 per share
to its employees of the Group. Shares of the Company were
at closing price of HK$0.690 immediately before the day on
which options were granted. The grant of share options to its
employees of the Company and the specific mandate to allot,
issue and deal with the shares of the Company upon conversion
of the foregoing share options were approved by the SGM held
on 28 February 2011.
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Report of the Directors
EEHREE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d) BRESE (&
The summary details of options granted are as follows: EREZAEFBOT:
Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
share options share options share options share options share options share options
Name of directors outstanding as at ~ granted during  exercised during  cancelled during lapsed during  outstanding as at
and employees Exercise period 1 January 2012 the year the year the year the year 31 December 2012
RZB-Zf RZB-Z%
-f-H TZA=+-8
AT BRRd BREAR BABHH BREAX AT
ESRBEANERRE  TKH BREZA BREHA BREHA BREZA BREHA REHE
Cui Jian 7 September 2002 to 3,180,000 - - - (3,180,000) -
7 Apri\ 2012
EZ ZETCENALEE
“Z$-Z4¥MAtA
Qiu Lei (Note 1) 9 April 2008 to 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000
8 October 2017
BE (M1 Z22)\FHANEE
ZEB-tE+ANA
Continuous contract 9 April 2008 to 21,020,000 - - - (300,000) 20,720,000
employees (other than 8 October 2017
directors)
RESNER (SR —TTN\EMANEE
ZE-LETANA
Pao Ping Wing 19 July 2010 to 600,000 - - - - 600,000
18 January 2020
BAR ZZ-TELATNEE
ZECTE-ATA
Tam Kwok Hing 19 July 2010 to 600,000 - - - - 600,000
18 January 2020
HEE ZE-TELATAEE
“BCEE-ATAR
Lo King Man 19 July 2010 to 600,000 - - - - 600,000
18 January 2020
EEX T-2EtATNRE
ZZCRE-AT)H
Hung Ying 19 July 2010 to 2,500,000 - - - - 2,500,000
18 January 2020
24 “Z-R5tAtNAE
ZECTE-ATA
Qiu Lei (Note 7) 19 July 2010 to 500,000 - - - - 500,000
18 January 2020
B& (Wit1) “E-TELATAEE
“BCEE-ATAR
Continuous contract 19 July 2010 to 14,530,000 - - - (1,550,000) 12,980,000
employees (other than 18 January 2020
directors)
BEADER (BER) —E2-THtAThAE
ZECRE-ATHE

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
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Report of the Directors

EEWES

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d) BIRRERTE (&)
Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
share options share options share options share options share options share options
Name of directors outstanding asat  granted during  exercised during  cancelled during lapsed during  outstanding as at
and employees Exercise period 1 January 2012 the year the year the year the year 31 December 2012
R=%-Zf% R=%-Zf%
-A-H TZAZt-H
e BRE BREnk BRERE BREAX 3itid
EZREBRNERRE AEA BREYE BREHE BREHA BREHE BREHE HREHE
Hung Ying 16 February 2011 to 1,550,000 - - - - 1,550,000
15 August 2020
2 ZE3-—FZRT/HEE
ZECTENATEA
Qiu Lei (Note 7) 16 February 2011 to 310,000 - - - - 310,000
15 August 2020
5% (131 ZZ-—FZR+RHE
ZZ-Z5N\A+aA
Continuous contract 16 February 2011 to 6,450,000 - - - (310,000) 6,140,000
employees (other than 15 August 2020
directors)

BEANES (BBRH) —T——F-F+/BZ
“E-ZE\RtHA

Hung Yung Lai 28 February 2011 to 65,000,000 - - - - 65,000,000
9 January 2021
s “E-—f-f-t/R
E-T--£-ANA
Qiu Lei (Note 1) 28 February 2011 to 590,0000 - - - - 590,000
12 January 2021
B (Hit1) %Rt ARE
“2--%-AtZH
Continuous contract 28 February 2011 to 17,950,000 - - - (490,000) 17,460,000
employees (other than 12 January 2021
directors)
REANEB(EZR)) —T——F-A-T/\RZ
“2--%-AtZH
141,380,000 - - - (5,830,000) 135,550,000
Note: Hat :

1. Mr. Qiu Lei resigned as an Executive Director of the Company with effect 1. HZEECBTAARNTESE - —F+=
from 31 December 2012. AR=+—HREw®-
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Report of the Directors
EEHREE

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed
“Directors’ and chief executives’ interest and short positions
in shares, underlying shares and debentures” below and the
share option scheme disclosures in note 27 to the financial
statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the company
granted to any director or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, or the Company’s subsidiary or
holding company or a subsidiary of the Company’s holding
company or a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT SHAREHOLDERS
Save for the directors, management shareholders and
substantial shareholders as herein disclosed, the directors are
not aware of any persons who as at 31 December 2012 were
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 5% or more of
the voting power at general meetings of the Company and

who were able, as a practical matter, to direct or influence the
management of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

None of the directors, management shareholders or substantial
shareholders of the Company or any of their respective
associates, as defined in the GEM Listing Rules, has engaged
in any business that competes or may compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group or has any other
conflict of interests with the Group during year ended 31
December 2012.
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Report of the Directors

EEWES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on page 32 to
page 44 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on information that is
publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the Company
maintained the amount of public float as required under the
GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company for the period from 1 January
2012 to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Hung Yung Lai (Chairman)

Cui Jian

Qiu Lei (Resigned on 31 December 2012)
Hung Ying

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Pao Ping Wing

Tam Kwok Hing

Lo King Man

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Bye-Laws,
Mr. Cui Jian and Mr. Tam Kwok Hing will retire from office by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offers himself for re-election.

Mr. Hung Yung Lai, the Chairman, will also retire from office
and offer himself for re-election in view of the provision in
paragraph A.4.2 of the Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Mr. Pao Ping Wing, Mr. Tam Kwok Hing and
Mr. Lo King Man and as at the date of this report still considers
them to be independent.
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Report of the Directors

EEWES

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not terminable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 11 to 13
of the annual report.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the directors of the Company and
the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in
note 11 and 12 to the financial statements, respectively.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 29 of the notes to the consolidated
financial statements, no contracts of significance in relation to
the Group's business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company or a controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries, had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in note 29 of the notes to the consolidated
financial statements, the connected transactions are exempted
from the reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval
requirement pursuant to the GEM Listing Rule 20.23.
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Report of the Directors

EEWES

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
were audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Hung Yung Lai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2013
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Corporate Governance Report

AL A i s/
TEERMEE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognizes the value and importance of achieving
high corporate governance standards to enhance corporate
performance, transparency and accountability, earning the
confidence of shareholders and the public. The Board strives
to adhere to the principles of corporate governance and adopt
sound corporate governance practices to meet the legal and
commercial standards by focusing on areas such as internal
control, fair disclosure and accountability to all shareholders.

Saved as disclosed below, the Company complied with the
code provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the "Former Code”, formerly set out in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules) during the period from 1 January 2012
to 31 March 2012 and of the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report (the “New Code”, the
new edition of the code on Corporate Governance Practices,
which is applicable to financial reports covering the period
after 1 April 2012) during the period from 1 April 2012 to
31 December 2012. The Company periodically reviews its
corporate governance practices to ensure its continuous
compliance.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions during the twelve months
ended 31 December 2012 as set out in GEM Listing Rules
5.48 to 5.67. The Company has made specific enquiry of all
the Directors and the Company was not aware of any non-
compliance with the required standard of dealings regarding
the securities transactions by Directors.

Specific employees who are likely to be possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Group are also
subject to compliance with the same Code of Conduct. No
incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2012.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEEARES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors of the Company comprises:

Executive Directors Hung Yung Lai

Cui Jian

Qiu Lei (Resigned on
31 December 2012)

Hung Ying

Independent Non-executive Pao Ping Wing

Directors Tam Kwok Hing

Lo King Man

The board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors
its financial performance and maintains effective oversight over
the management. The board members are fully committed
to their roles and have acted in good faith to maximize the
shareholders’ value in the long run, and have aligned the
Group's goals and directions with the prevailing economic and
market conditions. Daily operations and administration are
delegated to the management.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the
preparation of financial statements of each financial period,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flow for the period. As the
Group had net assets as at 31 December 2012, the Board does
not foresee any material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
the Board therefore continues to adopt the going concern
approach in preparing the financial statements.

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for
providing with Board papers and related materials, for ensuring
that all Board procedures and all applicable laws, rules and
regulations are followed, and for reporting to the Chairman
on governance matters. All directors have unrestricted
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary.
The Company secretary also keeps minutes of all meetings
which are available for inspection at any reasonable time on

reasonable notice by any Directors.
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AL A i s/
TEERMREE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

In order to assist the Directors to carry out their duties, the
Board has set out terms of reference, enabling the Directors to
seek independent professional advice upon reasonable request
under appropriate circumstances and the fees are payable by
the Company.

Independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
period of two years commencing from their employment dates.

In compliance with rule 5.05A, 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three independent
non-executive directors representing more than one-third
of the Board and at least one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Company has received from each
independent non-executive director an annual confirmation of
his independence, and the Company considers such directors
to be independent in accordance with each and the various
guidelines set out in rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

With the various experience of both the executive directors
and the non-executive directors and the nature of the Group's
business, the Board considered that the directors have a
balance of skills and experience for the business of the Group.

The Company has arranged for Directors’ and Officers’ liability
Insurance to indemnify its Directors against potential liabilities
incurred by them in discharging their duties. The increase
coverage for the Directors is reviewed on an annual basis.

The Company has established a Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee will evaluate the independence of all
independent non-executive Directors each year and make sure
that they comply with the independence requirement of the
Listing Rules. All members of the Board are not related to one
another in all aspects, including finance, family and business.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEEARES

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive
Directors of the Company has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of 2-3 years. Such term is
subject to his re-appointment by the Company at an AGM
upon retirement. The articles of association of the Company
provide that any Director appointed by the Board, (i) to fill a
casual vacancy in the Board, shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting of the Company and shall be subject
to re-election at such meeting and (ii) as an addition to the
Board shall hold office until the next AGM of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities.
Each newly appointed Director would receive an induction
package covering the Group’s businesses and the statutory and
regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company. The
Group also provides briefings and other training to develop
and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills. The Group
continuously updates Directors on the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. Circulars or
guidance notes are issued to Directors and senior management
where appropriate, to ensure awareness of best corporate
governance practices.
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AL A i s/
TEERBRES

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS EEEIRIE (&)
(Cont’d)

During the period from 1 April 2012 to 31 December 2012, the R-_ZE——_FWA—HEZE_ZT——_F+_ A

Directors participated in the following trainings: =+t HHEAN EF2ELTE:
Type of
Trainings
35 5\ 38 Bl
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Hung Yung Lai RREIAZ SE A4 AB
F.Z
Mr. Cui Jian EREAE A.B
F.Z
Mr. Qiu Lei B % o A AB
(Resigned on 31 December 2012) (RZE—=F+ZA=+—HET) FZ
Mr. Hung Ying AR g A,B
F.Z
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYKHITES
Mr. Pao Ping Wing IR R 5 A A,B
FR-Z
Mr. Tam Kwok Hing O E A A,B
F.Z
Mr. Lo King Man ERXEAE AB
H.Z
A:  Study corporate governance issue relating to directors’ duties F: HRANREZBECCEEREE
B:  reading newspaper, journals and updates relating to the economy, general 7@ BEABEREE —REBLESHES 2 RE -TIOR
business or directors’ duties etc. BHAR
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TEEARES

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman of the Company is Mr. Hung Yung Lai. The
roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
segregated and assumed by two separate individuals who have
no relationship with each other. The Chairman of the board
is responsible for the leadership and effective running of the
board, while the Chief Executive Officer is delegated with the
authorities to manage the business of the Group in all aspects
effectively.

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. The
division of responsibilities between the chairman and chief
executive officer should be clearly established and set out
in writing. Subsequent to the resignation of Mr. Chan Kam
Fai, no replacement of the post of the chief executive officer
has been fixed as at 31 December 2012. The Board will keep
reviewing the current structure from time to time. If candidate
with suitable knowledge, skills and experience is identified,
the Company will make appointment to fill the post of chief
executive officer as appropriate.

BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The board has established three Board committees, namely,
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Audit Committees, for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees have been
established with defined written terms of reference, which
are posted on the GEM's website www.hkgem.com and the
Company's website at www.singlee.com.cn. All the Board
committees should report to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations made.

The practices, procedures and arrangements in conducting
meetings of Board committees follow in line with, so far as
practicable, those of the Board meetings set out in above.
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BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS (Cont’d)

All Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties set out in the Code which included
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance, training and continuous professional
development of Directors, and reviewing the Company's
compliance with the code provision in the Code and disclosures
in this report.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties set out in the Code which included
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance, training and continuous professional
development of Directors, and reviewing the Company's
compliance with the code provision in the Code and disclosures
in this report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established in November
2005. The chairman of the committee is Mr. Pao Ping Wing,
and other members include Mr. Hung Yung Lai, Mr. Tam Kwok
Hing and Mr. Lo King Man. The written terms of reference of
the Remuneration committee which have been revised effective
on 26 March 2012 to comply with the new requirements set
out in the revised code provisions are posted on the GEM
website and the Company’s website.

The remuneration committee has been charged with the
responsibility of making recommendations to the Board on
appropriated policy and structures for all aspects of all Directors
and senior management remuneration. The remuneration
committee considers factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the
Group and desirability of performance-based remuneration.

The remuneration committee has considered and reviewed the
remuneration packages and emoluments of Directors and senior
management and consider that are fair and reasonable.
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TEEARES

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee was established in March 2012.
The chairman of the committee is Mr. Hung Yung Lai and
other members include Mr. Pao Ping Wing, Mr. Tam Kwok Hing
and Mr. Lo King Man. The written terms of reference of the
nomination committee which have been made effective on 26
March 2012 to comply with the new requirements set out in
the revised code provisions are posted on the GEM website and
the Company’s website.

The duties of the nomination committee are mainly to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;
identify suitable candidates for appointment as directors;
make recommendations to the Board on appointment or re-
appointment of an succession planning for directors; and assess
the independence of independent non-executive directors.

The nomination committee considered the past performance,
qualification, general market conditions and the Company's
articles of association in selecting and recommending
candidates of directorship. The nomination committee
discussed and reviewed the retirement and re-election of
Directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established in August 2001. The
chairman of the audit committee is Mr. Pao Ping Wing and
other members include Mr. Tam Kwok Hing and Mr. Lo King
Man, all of them are independent non-executive directors.
The written terms of reference of the audit committee which
have been revised effective on 26 March 2012 to comply with
the new requirement set out in the revised code provision are
posted on the GEM website and the Company’s website.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

The primary duties of the audit committee are mainly to review
the financial information and reporting process, internal control
procedures and risk management system, audit plan and
relationship with external auditors and arrangements to enable
employees of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters of the Company.

The Company has complied with Rules 5.28 of the GEM
Listing Rules in that at least one of the members of the Audit
Committee (which must comprise a minimum of three members
and must be chaired by an Independent-non executive director)
is an independent non-executive director who possesses
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting related
financial management expertise.

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the year. The
Group’s unaudited quarterly results for the 3 months ended
31 March 2012, 9 months ended 30 September 2012 and
interim results for the 6 months ended 30 June 2012 as well as
audited annual results for the year ended 31 December 2012
have been reviewed by the audit committee, which was of the
opinion that the preparation of such results complied with the
applicable accounting standards and requirements and that
adequate disclosure have been made.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT MEETINGS

The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings,
Audit committee meetings, Remuneration Committee meetings
and Nomination Committee meetings during the year ended 31
December 2012 is set out in the following table:

Euﬁtﬂﬁ Eﬁ

BREENBE_T——HF+-A=1+—HL*F
EHFREEE SR BRZESSH FHEZE
CER RAZBEERMBMRAGZLEH
BQT%-

Audit Nomination Remuneration

Board Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Ezg ENZEE REZE® FHzEe
Directors B L ] EE e
Number of meetings held EEL VN 5 5 1 1
Number of meetings attended/ LT %/K%(/
Number of meetings held BERITRE
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Hung Yung Lai i 5/5 - 171 171
Mr. Cui Jian EREAE 5/5 - - -
Mr. Qiu Lei (Resigned on BErE(RZZ-ZF
31 December 2012) TZRA=+—-BEf) 5/5 - - -
Mr. Hung Ying RERE 5/5 - - -
Independent non-executive directors BUFLTES
Mr. Pao Ping Wing BRREE 5/5 5/5 171 171
Mr. Tam Kwok Hing HEB R4 5/5 5/5 17 /1
Mr. Lo King Man ERXEHE 5/5 5/5 171 171
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REMUNERATION BB S

The fees in respect of audit services provided by the
independent auditor to the Group for the year ended 31
December 2012 amounted approximately HK$500,000 (2011:
HK$480,000). No other significant fee was incurred for non-
audit services during the year (2011: Nil).

EEBYURHREBEE_ZT——F+_A8
ST+ —BLEFERAASEREEZREZE
Fl #) /500,000 7T (= Z — — 4 : 480,000/
TL) o AFEWEELEBBEZERG 2 HitE
RER(ZE——F: &)
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DIRECTORS’ AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the company and its subsidiaries, in accordance
with accounting principle generally accepted in Hong Kong.
The Directors’ responsibilities in the preparation of the financial
statements and the auditor’s responsibilities are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report in this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has conducted a review on the effectiveness
and adequacy of the Group’s internal control system during
the year. The Company convened meetings periodically to
discuss financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions. The Directors are of the view that the
key areas of the Group's internal control system are reasonably
implemented with rooms for improvement. The Group will use
its endeavor to implement changes in order to further improve
the Group's internal control system.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has adopted Shareholders Communication Policy
with objective of ensuing that the Shareholders and potential
investors are provided with ready, equal and timely access to
balanced and understandable information about the Company.

The Company has established a number of channels to
communicate with the Shareholders as follows:

(i) corporate communications such as annual reports,
quarterly reports, interim reports and circulars are issued in
printed form and are available on the GEM website www.
hkgem.com and the Company’s website at www.singlee.
com.cn;
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND ERRBEBRREEREZE (£)
INVESTOR RELATIONS (Cont’d)

(i) periodic announcements are made through the Stock (i) FHIE B ZETEL QM W& 45 5l
Exchange and published on the respective websites of the FUH R Bt AT P SR AN A &) 2 A8
Stock Exchange and the Company;

(iiiy corporate information is made available on the Company’s (i) RARQ BRI ESEEL R
website;

(iv) annual and special general meetings provide a forum for (iv) PEEREF R E MR RTRIAS B ERIEMHR

the shareholders to make comments and exchange views Ta MEFKaREEERBRERRER
with the Directors and senior management; and mMEE &

(v) the Hong Kong share registrar of the Company serves (v) ZARBIZHBRMDBFZLEN ARERE
the Shareholders in respect of share registration, dividend HERHBFER RERNSREEEEZ
payment and related matters. PR 75

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and ZARQ B NETREELEE 2 BE W EIR
enhancing communication with the existing Shareholders and BERERBEEREEZ /BB - ARFELEE
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors, & HEHRFEALRRABRATIEEER AESEE
stakeholders and the public Enquiries to the Board or the S AARMEEZERAIHFTEARNTNRESZ
Company may be sent by post to the Company's principal place = & & 5 1th Bf o

of business in Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, there is no #HZEZZ——F+-_A=+—HALFE AR
significant change in the Company’s memorandum and articles &) Z 484k 2 K 40 & EF2 40 A (T (T = K &
of association. g o
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

As one of the measures to safeguard shareholder’s interest
and rights, separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue, including the election of
individual directors, for share holders’ consideration voting. All
resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meeting will be voted
by poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and the poll voting
results will be posted on the GEM website and the Company’s
website after the relevant shareholders’ meeting.

Extraordinary general meeting may be convened by the Board
on requisition of share holders holding not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company or by such shareholders
who made the requisition (the “Requisitionists”) (as the
case may be) pursuant to Article 58 of the Bye-laws. Such
requisition must state the object of business to be transacted
at the meeting and must be signed by the Requisitionists
and deposited at the registered office of the Company or
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.
Shareholders should follow the requirements and procedures as
set out in such Article for convening an extraordinary general
meeting. Shareholders may put forward proposals at general
meeting of the Company by sending the same to the Company
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company. Shareholders may
send their enquiries or requests in respect of their rights to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B M % BRD IR

Deloitte.
=20

TO THE MEMBERS OF SING LEE SOFTWARE
(GROUP) LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sing Lee Software (Group) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 48 to 128, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2012, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

BHARG (RE) ROERATDRE
(RERZZMALZZ HERLA])

TAEEN (A TR [E5]) DEI%FE48E128
BER#E oA (@) RHERAF ([ERQ
) REMBAR (F#E (EE@E]) 2EEH
BREX EREER_Z——F+_A=+—
BZHGRAWBRAKR UREBEEZBLEFEY
FETHRGR KeRREPRRESES
MER URETEZSEERE K E M
o

EERARAVBRRARENSLE

BERREFTARIREERMBHRE LN RE
B AR BHERD) Z BERTERBEES MG HRE
NEBERAFMINRER AR EER DR
EMBHMRAVENAINEZEE FEE UE
REBMBHRR N FHEARKFRERMER
B K 5 R R ©
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2012, and of the Group's loss and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2
to the consolidated financial statements which indicates that
the Group incurred a net loss of approximately RMB11,344,000
during the year ended 31 December 2012. This condition,
along with other matters as set forth in Note 2 to the
indicate the existence
of a material uncertainty which may cast doubt about the

consolidated financial statements,

Company's and the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 March 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REETEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE-—F——Ff+-_A=+—HIFE

2012 2011
—E—-F —E-—F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
Jiokza AR¥Fr AR For

Revenue $HE WA 6 36,080 18,840
Cost of sales 8 65 B AR (17,977) (18,254)
Gross profit EA 18,103 586
Other income H U A 2,689 866
Other gains and losses Hib iz & E 18 7 1,482 18,734
Distribution and selling expenses DERIEEE R (9,501) (9,250)
Administrative expenses EEBHA (22,510) (45,465)
Recovery of trade receivables FEWE 5 BR BB T

previously impaired VERERERN 1,461 148
Research and development costs ot B Al AR (156) (1,946)
Finance costs BMEER 8 (2,549) (1,082)
Loss before tax MREBLAIE 1B (10,981) (37,409)
Income tax expense Frig®if = 9 (353) (74)
Loss and total comprehensive rEEBERZEHMBXEHE

expense for the year 10 (11,334) (37,483)
Loss per share BREE

— basic (RMB cents) —EXR(ANRHS) 13 (1.4) (4.62)

— diluted (RMB cents) —EE(ANRES) 13 (1.4) (4.62)

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #TFlE{4 (5£E) RHBERA




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R &

At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——F+_-_H=+—H

2012 2011
—E-—F —E——4%F
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB’000
Jiokia AR¥FT AREFT
Non-current Assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment TEIE KE R&E 14 4,960 4,957
Intangible assets EmAE 15 - -
4,960 4,957
Current Assets RBEE
Inventories FE 16 417 440
Trade and other receivables FEUWE 5 & H A AR K 17 17,947 8,371
Loan receivable JEURE 5k 18 1,605 2,040
Held for trading investments BIEEERE 19 660 2,242
Pledged bank deposit EHEFRITER 20 - 50,000
Bank balances and cash RITHEGB MRS 20 19,147 22,085
39,776 85,178
Current Liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 R H M BR K 21 8,936 10,157
Amounts due to directors B EE A 22 632 625
Amount due to a shareholder JE A< A% SR 3R A 23 11 11
Borrowings BE 24 2,405 44,317
11,984 55,110
Net Current Assets REBEESHE 27,792 30,068
Total assets less current WEERRBEE
liabilities 32,752 35,025
Non-current Liabilities el I R=R
Borrowings BE 24 32,018 24,729
Net Assets EEFE 734 10,296
Capital and reserves EXR#EE
Share capital [N 26 8,132 8,132
Reserves 1 (7,398) 2,164
Total equity HERE 734 10,296

The consolidated financial statements on pages 48 to 128 were  F48F F128BMHE NG AV BHRIIREES
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on WR—-—FT—=F=H -+ 7 A #th /&R E#ER -
25 March 2013 and are signed on its behalf by: WHTIATREEE:

Hung Yung Lai Cui Jian
Director Director
REELIE ER

= Ea
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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50

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z -ZF— —F+_-A=+—HIFFZ
Share
Share Share Statutory Translation options  Accumulated
capital premium reserves reserve reserve losses Total
BA& RARE LG Eifik BRERE 2itER At
RMB000 RIMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
(Note a) (Note b)
(Hita) (Hih)
At 1 January 2011 RZE--%-f-H 8,132 151,770 3,613 5217 11,416 (158,063) 22,085
Loss and total comprehensive ~ AFEFERZERY
expense for the year &3 - - - - - (37,483) (37,483)
Recognition of equity-settled ~ BRRELENRH A
share-based payments AWM - - - - 25,694 - 25,694
At 31 December 2011 RZB--%
+-A=1+-H 8,132 151,770 3,613 5217 37,10 (195,546) 10,296
Loss and total comprehensive ~ AEEFERZEARX
expense for the year a8 - - - - - (11,334) (11,334)
Recognition of equity-settled ~ BRRELENRGD B
share-based payments ERAF - - - - 17712 - 17712
At 31 December 2012 RZB-Z%
+-A=t+-H 8,132 151,770 3,613 5217 38,882 (206,880) 734
Notes: ki
(a) Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda ("Companies Act”), share (a) REERE—AN—FEQEDE(TREDE])  BDHE
premium is distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that the ﬂﬁiﬁ?%% ‘TE%BEEALXT’F% R )R E 9 R
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of f& - BEINERE R E B & - (i) EIQEZT“
share premium and capital reserve if (i) it is, or would after the payment be, fEH b Fﬁéﬁéﬁiﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬂxzﬁﬁﬁzi@ ER:UE N
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (i) the realisable value of TS E IR R A AR B 30 LA BR 15 V3 (B ] & A uﬁﬁfﬁﬁ
its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its ik
issued share capital account.
(b)  As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment  (b) RIEFEARLME ([FEHINEEREDCE ZBBE

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #TFlE{4 (5£E) RHBERA

enterprises in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), the Company’s
PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain two statutory reserves, being an
enterprise expansion fund and a statutory surplus reserve fund which are
non-distributable. Appropriations to such reserves are made out of net
profit after taxation reported in the statutory financial statements of the
PRC subsidiaries while the amounts and allocation basis are decided by
their respective boards of directors annually. The statutory surplus reserve
fund can be used to make up their prior year losses, if any, and can be
applied in conversion into capital by means of capitalisation issue. The
enterprise expansion fund is used for expanding the capital base of the PRC
subsidiaries by means of capitalisation issue.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—ZF

— A= —AIEE

2012 2011
—E-—C—F —F——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFr AREFor
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEY
Loss before tax FRELRIE R (10,981) (37,409)
Adjustments for: HE
Finance costs BEER 2,549 1,082
Interest income FMEWBA (2,097) (90)
Depreciation of property, THE - BEREEBNTE
plant and equipment 1,135 635
Allowance on trade receivables FEUE 5) BR 5 2,042 1,649
Recovery of trade receivables EWE ZERF BT
previously impaired bERENERY (3,503) (1,797)
Allowance on loan receivable FEUE SR - 2,040
Reversal of impairment loss BREERFEREEBS
recognised on inventories (2,765) (1,577)
Equity-settled share-based Hﬁ*%% %%J«A ’5 %
payment expenses AN NG 1,772 25,694
Fair value change on investments ?ﬂ’EféT B2WREARER
held for trading (363) 4,869
Fair value gain on derivative MTEeRABEANERS
financial liability - (27,763)
Exchange difference EHER 34 189
Operating cash flows before EEELBBHAZREREN
movements in working capital (12,177) (32,478)
Decrease in inventories FERD 2,788 1,994
(Increase) decrease in trade and JEUE B M H A BRFR (3G 0) Rk >
other receivables (8,115) 1,550
Decrease in investments held for FIEEERERD
trading 1,945 2,512
Decrease in trade and FET B 5 I H Ath BR FORk
other payables (1,221) (1,920)
Cash used in operations REMARSE (16,780) (28,342)
Income tax paid EIFTEH (353) (601)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING RETHFFAZHESFHE
ACTIVITIES (17,133) (28,943)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—ZF

— S ASf—AIEE

2012 2011
=®F-=F —F—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT AREFT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REETH
Release (placement) of Rk (F8) D BHRITHER
pledged bank deposit 50,000 (50,000)
Interest received 2 E 2,097 90
Repayment of loan receivable EERWER 401 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, Hj’iT\@J;‘Z B &
plant and equipment HAEFTIS A 38 368
Purchase of property, BETHE BEKIEE
plant and equipment (1,176) (3,648)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) REZBFREB (A 2REFE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 51,360 (53,190)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES METH
Repayment of borrowings BEBE (44,670) (1,381)
Interest paid [EENEAESS (2,549) (1,082)
Proceeds from borrowings BEMEHIA 10,047 70,427
Advance from a director EERH BN 7 328
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM mMETEE (FTR)ME
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BE&FEE (37,165) 68,292
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERBESEENZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS B (2,938) (13,841)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HFH{lzRERBESZEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 22,085 35,926
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRzZEESR
AT END OF THE YEAR ReZEEY
represented by: Al
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR MRS 19,147 22,085

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
V=RV

W
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z -—ZF— —F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

= B 5 W AR M AL

1.

GENERAL

Sing Lee Software (Group) Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The address of its registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
section headed “Corporate Information” in the annual
report. Its immediate holding company is Goldcorp
Industrial Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) are development and sales of
software products, sales of related hardware products and
provision of software-related technical support services.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis. The Group incurred a loss of
approximately RMB11,334,000 for the year ended 31
December 2012. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements, the directors of the Company have reviewed
the Group's financial and liquidity position, and taken into
consideration the following factors:

e ongoing financial support by a shareholder with
significant influence over the Company;

e  cost control measures; and

e possible additional external funding.

—REE

FHREE (EB)BROBRAR (AR
A EERFEZFMRY A —REREER
RNEERONRBEBBERZAERRAA
BIEIR Em - ARRFMPRERERFEE
BN FR[ARIER] —HRE-HE
B A 5] A Goldcorp Industrial Limited:

RZARNRB R AR SEMMKL -

RERBREAARE (TARE]) 25
MARBDARAREWNBRAB 2HER
ﬁé}o

ARBREMBAR (GEIAEE]) X
ERFUHEMREREE HEMBE
B mn S R R R AR B ST SR RS F 3%
7% o

RHRESUBHRR2EE

BRAEVBRECRBELEREERE X
SEEE-_FT——F+-_A=1+—HIF
EERBEIBHARE11,334,0007T £ 4%
AU BmEAE ARREFCEHR
SENVBREBESRRLERTHE
=

s EB—NUHARABEEARFENNK
REVFS B B S
o AR K

o HENMFBEIINKES-
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z - ZF— —F+_-A=+—HIFFZ
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 2. RELGEAMBEHRER 2 EE (£F)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

The directors of the Company believe that, taking into RATESHE KEBLAMRAZER A&
account the above factors, the Group will be able to 15 75 82 0 PR AT R 2R AE B s A R B HR A
meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due for BEZHEFIA At REMBHRERIIER
the foreseeable future, and accordingly, have prepared FECEREERE -

the consolidated financial statements on a going concern

basis.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. BRI REETETEA

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
Amendments to Standards applied in the current year
In the current year, the Group has applied the following

amendments to Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB™).

RAFERRZENETE

REF AEBEEBATHBEERSE
AIZEg ([BERETEMNRES]) B
RERANERT AN

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of R4 R EERIA -
Underlying Assets; and B2 2 BFTAR HEEEWKE: &

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: B B B 7% i 5 22 R SRMTA: KSR
Disclosures — Transfers of FIRZIBEAR -—EROREE

Financial Assets

The application of the amendments to Standards in the
current year has had no material effect on the amounts
reported in these consolidated financial statements and/
or disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #TFlE{4 (£E) RHBERA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z -—ZF— —F+_-A=+—HIFFZE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

New and revised Standards, Amendments and

Interpretation issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new

and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

FE B3 E] R AEAE R

SRR (&)

EREMERERZHATREBTER &

AAKRRE

AEESRRFERBATERMERER
ZHET MR FTBR M M s R

effective:
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to BRI BmEElr BEMBEEER
IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle’ EHES —ZTNFE-E
——FRBCFE
B¢
Amendments to IFRS 1 Government Loans’ B B i iR 2 A BREH
EAE A HFN
Amendments to IFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting B PR B 75 5 2 A BE-—HEEREE
Financial Assets and TR ZBE R kemaE
Financial Liabilities’
Amendments to IFRS 9 and Mandatory Effective Date BIR BF A dm  E A B B 7 5 v A

IFRS 7 of IFRS 9 and Transition F95% L BRI 1 F 95 2 58l R
Disclosures’ WEEAETRZ BHE BB 2
EHES R
Amendments to IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial BB B 75 5 2E R REMB®RE.
IFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 Statements, Joint 1057 - BIFR BT 7% e REER
Arrangements and Disclosure BEENENKR Hin B Ba
of Interests in Other Entities: BB BREEL BIE MRS
Transition Guidance’ B2 ZERIAR
Amendments to IFRS 10, Investment Entities? B PR B 75 5 2 A REE®
IFRS 12 and IAS 27 F10%% BRI
WMEEAEI12HR
B & A
F2THR 2 BFT AR
IFRS 9 Financial Statements’ BB B 75 3 5 2E R B K
F95%
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial B PR B 75 5 2E R REMBRE
Statements’ 1058
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements’ BIR BF A dm  E A Bia 2
F11%
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in BB B 75 3 5 2E R BEANHEMEREL
Other Entities’ 2125 Rz
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement’ B B i iR 2 A DA EFTE

1358
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z - ZF— —F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

New and revised Standards, Amendments and
Interpretation issued but not yet effective (Cont’d)

IAS 19 (Revised 2011) Employee Benefits’
IAS 27 (Revised 2011) Separate Financial Statements’
IAS 28 (Revised 2011) Investments in Associates and

Joint Ventures’

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income?

Amendments to IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?

IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the
Production Phase of
a Surface Mine’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as issued in 2009) introduces
new requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial assets. IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as revised
in 2010) adds requirements for financial liabilities and for
derecognition.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #TFlE{4 (£E) RHBERA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRNE
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z -—ZF— —F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

New and revised Standards, Amendments and
Interpretation issued but not yet effective (Cont’d)

Specifically, under IFRS 9, all recognised financial assets
that are within the scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement are subsequently measured
at either amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair values at
the end of subsequent accounting periods.

In relation to financial liabilities, the significant changes
relates to financial liabilities designated as at fair value
through profit or loss.

IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2015, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that IFRS 9 will be adopted in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for financial
year ending 31 December 2015. The directors are in the
process of assessing the impact of the adoption of IFRS 9.

3. BRI REES

SETER (&)

EEMERERZHITREBTER &
AAKkRR(#)

E’é“% 5 RIEERM GRS EREIRMR

PRELBIR St R FE39 (24 T
ﬂ BARGTE]| AN TREERLRIRE
AL AABEFE- AWM S HP A
WEBEHRERERB N ZEEEAMET
B URBEASHREERNSHEMNK
EECHRERENEHRE —MRER
%.ﬂaﬂﬁﬂf‘aﬁﬁ’ﬂ%&ﬁﬁﬁkKﬁ%°Fﬁ7ﬁﬁ1ﬁj%fx
RERBRAREREZ R HRRORAE

S

HeMBEMS HYeREENEEZE
AR ER AR ER AR

BB REEREIRN T —HF —
HAH—H EJ?Z(%:EW@ZEEEHF&JE&“& IR
FHRREM -

B BRUBREEREIRBHNA
SEBEE—_ZT-AF+_A=1T—HLY
BEENGEAVBEBRRARM -EFHRIE

FERAERY SRS LA FORELE Y
ye-

Annual Report 2012 —Z——FF

57



58

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z -ZF— —F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued,
including IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12, IAS 27 (Revised 2011)
and IAS 28 (Revised 2011) are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013. Earlier application
is permitted provided that all of these five new or revised
standards are applied early at the same time. These
new or revised standards will be applied in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for financial year ending
31 December 2013 and the potential impact is described
below.

IFRS 10 replaces the parts of IAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements and SIC12 Consolidation — Special
Purpose Entities. IFRS 10 includes a new definition of
control that contains three elements: (a) power over an
investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee, and (c) ability to use
its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
investor’s returns. Extensive guidance has been added
in IFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios. Based on the
existing group structure, the directors anticipate that
the application of these five standards may not have
significant impact on amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ—-F——F+=-A=+—HIFFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair
value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements. The Standard defines fair value, establishes
a framework for measuring fair value, and requires
disclosures about fair value measurements. The scope of
IFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument
items and non-financial instrument items for which
other IFRSs require or permit fair value measurements
and disclosures about fair value measurements, except
in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in IFRS 13 are more extensive than those
in the current standards. For example, quantitative and
qualitative disclosures based on the three-level fair value
hierarchy currently required for financial instruments only
under IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures will be
extended by IFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities within
its scope.

IFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

IFRS 13 will be adopted in the Group's consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning
1 January 2013 and that the application of the new
Standard may not have material impact on the amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements
but would result in more extensive disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised Standards,
amendments and Interpretations will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z - ZF— —F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, FESEHHEK

60

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the IASB. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below. Historical cost
is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the effective
date of acquisition and up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of the
Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z -—ZF— —F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 4. FTESFEHE (£&)
Revenue recognition HEWARR

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised when all
the following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sales of hardware and software products
is recognised when the goods are delivered and title has
passed upon customers’ acceptance.

Service income for provision of software-related technical
support is recognised when services are provided.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z -ZF— —F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4. FEEHHE (£)

62

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably. Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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HEWARRE (&)

EEAEN G A ERANRE REERAS
HENTEMAEZLENLT EREELZ
MEBWASHER - 2REEZMBRA
T2RAEEARNSRER 2 ERH XK
AL OIFHE CGERZ BERA KA EERLR
TRMEEEFFHRNGETRRASRAZE
BERTIAERRF 2REFEINEK) -

TBE BMEREE

TEE BB KBRS R & AR
BABFHERZFREEBR (WE) -

FrERBEANMABREMSE TEE
BEIREBEBZRANMGRSREERE B
AMEEH A e BB 2 SRR D o fh AT AT 2
RER FREELRFTETZARSHS
BRI BB R ERBRANIEL
HEARR

TEE BB RREHRB N L ERNTAEH
SEEREELTEES RREENEH
BT RIEER - T BE BB MRER
BZHERERELEZEFAEERIEHE
PGB AREERABECZRBEALR
BRAER -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRNE
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z -—ZF— —F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
(the translation reserve).
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Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss. In addition, in relation
to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result
in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grant

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Government grant (Cont’d)

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Government grants
that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
state-managed retirement benefit schemes are charged
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

—  the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

—  the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

—  the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
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Research and development expenditure (Cont’d)

— how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

—  the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

— the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any).

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net

realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the
two categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") and loans and receivables.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments, other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income is included
in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL represent financial assets held for
trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

e it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4. FEEHHE (&)
Financial instruments (Cont’d) ¢®mIE (&)
Financial assets (Cont'd) EHEE(F)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Cont’d)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including loan receivable, trade and
other receivables, pledged bank deposit and bank balances
and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.
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Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the credit period of 120-180 days, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables. For loan receivable, impairment of
the asset is assessed individually by reference to the credit
quality of individual party.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables and loan receivable, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade receivable and loan receivable are considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The Group's financial liabilities are
generally classified into financial liabilities at FVTPL and
other financial liabilities.
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The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL represent financial liabilities
held for trading.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near future; or

e it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL represent warrant subscription
rights which are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value arising on remeasurement recognised directly in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including borrowings, trade and
other payables, amounts due to directors and amount due
to a shareholder are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss immediately.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue cost.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4. FEEHHE (&)

76

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Derecognition (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees after 7 November
2002 and vested on or after 1 January 2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share options
reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share options reserve will continue to be held in share
options reserve.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #TFIE{4 (£E) RHBERA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

= B 5 R AR MR

R E— = —HIEE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Share-based payment transactions (Cont’d)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Cont’d)

Share options granted to employees on or before 7
November 2002, or after 7 November 2002 and vested
before 1 January 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not
recorded in the consolidated financial statements until
such time as the options are exercised, and no charge
is recognised in profit or loss in respect of the value of
options granted. Upon the exercise of the share options,
the resulting shares issued are recorded as additional share
capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess
of the exercise price per share over the nominal value of
the shares is recorded as share premium. Options which
lapse or are cancelled prior to their exercise date are
deleted from the register of outstanding options.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4. FEEHHE (&)

78

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
(Cont’d)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 4, the directors of the
Company are required to make estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #TFIE4 (5£E) RHBERA
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ—-F——F+-HA=+—HIFFE

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 5. 2T TEEM2EERE (£)

UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concurring the

future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk

At T REM 2 EERIR

UTRERREBZETEBERENEREH
AT Z I EEECEMERRF - HE
RKERB<SEERAGBZREER MMEH

of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts HFEERNWENFE-
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
Allowance for doubtful debts BIRERZHERE

The Group’s management assesses the recoverability
and determines impairment of trade receivables and
loan receivable in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 4. Such estimation is based on the credit
history of its customers and the current market conditions.
Management reviews the debtor settlement status
periodically and reassesses the sufficiency of allowance
for doubtful debts accordingly. If the customer’s financial
position were to deteriorate, actual impairment loss or
write off would be higher than estimated.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operations are organised based on the
different types of products sold and service provided.
Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance is also focused on types of goods or
services delivered or provided.

AEEEEEREM TN Z G5 ERER
AT FE U 5 Bl R e B W B R 78 E ELURL
BB A DEREPZERRER
EREMR B BEEEREXBEHALZ
BERR YERRERBEEERE - WE
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—ZF
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

6. HEWARDHMER (&)

(Cont’d)
Segment revenues and results PHEERARESE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and REEZEEREZRDBEDHERAR
results by operating and reportable segment: XEZOWWET:
Provision of
software-
Sale of related
Sale of related technical
software hardware support
products products services Total
REHH
HEHRH HENRE MBI
Em BHER X ERB CH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBETFL ARETn AREEFT AREFT
2012 —8-ZF
External sales and total HIMAERBIHERA
revenue — segment revenue - D HERA 2,224 1,380 32,476 36,080
SEGMENT RESULTS PBEE (649) (403) (9,481) (10,533)
Unallocated other income RABEMBA 2,689
Unallocated other gains and losses AOEEMNERER 1,482
Unallocated corporate expenses APBEERX (2,070)
Finance costs HEER (2,549)
Loss before tax BREAIER (10,981)
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mEMBHRRNE
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z -—ZF— —F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

6.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

6. HEWARDHMER (&)

Segment revenues and results (Cont'd) PHHEERARERE (£)
Provision of
software-
Sale of related
Sale of related technical
software hardware support
products products services Total
RREHG
WETMH HERR Vel ks
7 i B Em TERR% At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANEETFT ARETT AREFTT ARETT
2011 —T——f
External sales and total HIMRERBIHEKRA
revenue — segment revenue —HEHHEERA 1,612 1,250 15,978 18,840
SEGMENT RESULTS 2 EE (3,124) (2,422) (30,964) (36,510)
Unallocated other income AOREMBA 866
Unallocated other gains and losses AOEEMNEREE 18,734
Unallocated corporate expenses AOEEERY (19,417)
Finance costs BREER (1,082)
Loss before tax BRELAIE R (37,409)
The accounting policies of the operating segments are A@"* 2 @EHIRER B ARt 2 AN

the same as the Group’s accounting policies as described
in note 4. Segment loss represents the loss from each
segment without allocation of directors’ remuneration,
finance costs, unallocated other income and other gains
and losses. This is the measure reported to the chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment. No segment
information on assets and liabilities is presented as such
information is not regularly reported to the chief operating
decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and
performance assessment.
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. HEWARDIER (&)

82

(Cont’d)
Other segment information Htr o MWER
Provision of
software-
Sale of related
Sale of related technical
software hardware support
products products services Total
Rt8H
HERK HENRE L2k
Em EHER X ERH CEil
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFL ARETH AREFT AREFT
2012 —B-ZF
Amounts included in the measure of ~ BERFEDBEEZ
segment loss: TIE:
Depreciation of property, THE BELRENE
plant and equipment 70 43 1,022 1,135
Allowance on trade receivables JEWE 5Bk 126 78 1,838 2,042
Recovery of trade receivables [EWE ZERTRBA
previously impaired pERENE (216) (134) (3,153) (3,503)
Share-based payment expenses PR BEBRNHAZ
(excluding directors) (TREES) 83 51 1,212 1,346
2011 —2——F
Amounts included in the measure of ~ BERHESTEEZ
segment loss: B
Depreciation of property, THE BELRENE
plant and equipment 54 42 539 635
Allowance on trade receivables W B R B 141 110 1,398 1,649
Recovery of trade receivables FEWE BB A
previously impaired B B (154) (119) (1,524) (1,797)
Share-based payment expenses D AEBR A ZH S
(excluding directors) (TREES) 647 500 6,403 7,550

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. HEWARDIER (&)
(Cont’d)
Revenue from major products and services: RETEEMRBRHZHERA:
2012 2011
—E-CF —EF——%F
RMB’'000 RMB’'000

AREFTT ARETT

Software products BH4EM
POS-MIS V2.0 POS-MIS V2.0 2,140 1,539
Sing Lee payment management MR ER RS
system 1.0 84 73
2,224 1,612
Hardware products BHEm
Vefifone5150+PP1000 Vefifone5150+PP1000 1,195 1,132
Others Hity 185 118
1,380 1,250
Provision of software-related RS EBE R
technical support services *ERE
Development e 2% 14,377 6,798
Maintenance g 18,099 9,180
32,476 15,978
36,080 18,840
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ-F——F+=-A=+—HIFFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
(Cont’d)

HERARDRER (&)

Geographical information i & &R

AEEKRBINKREP ZHERAY /KB
FERES -

The Group's revenue from external customers is all from
customers located in the PRC.

AEEMBRRDEEREEMELE D

All non-current assets of the Group are located in the PRC

by location of assets. BRI R BIFER -
Information about major customers FEREFER

HEFERBEFE ZEREE WA EEIEB
BAEEBHEE10%MT

Revenue from customer of the corresponding years
individually contributing over 10% of the total sales of the

84

Group is as follows:

2012 2011

—E——F —T——%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FrT AREFT

Customer A’ ZEA N/A =& A 3,300
Customer B’ B 4,435 N/A 38 F
Customer C' ERC 4,249 N/A “1~ 3 A

! Revenue from maintenance services in provision of software-related

B U IR B A B B M R AR BE B SR IR T

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #TFIE{4 (£E) RHBERA

technical support services. 2 HEERTS -
7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES Hitth s R E#E

2012 2011
—E-=F —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFT

Fair value gain on derivative MEeMAaEZ
financial liability NaERE - 27,763

Fair value change on investments RIEEEREZ
held for trading AREE 363 (4,869)
Allowance on loan receivable FEWE SR - (2,040)
Exchange gain (loss) ER W= (BE) 1,119 (2,120)
1,482 18,734
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—-F——F+-A=+—HIFFZF

8. FINANCE COSTS

8. MEEHM

2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Interest on bank borrowing wholly ARTIFANZEEEZ
repayable within five years RITEEZFE 1,681 665
Interest on loans from a director not EERTFRNEZHEEZ
wholly repayable within five years BERERZHE 868 417
2,549 1,082
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FIEHAX
2012 2011
. —T—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBFIT
PRC enterprise income tax RIS
("EIT") (M BHR])
— Current year —AREE 353 74

Hangzhou Singlee Technology Company Limited (“Singlee
Technology”), a subsidiary of the Company, was
established in Hangzhou, PRC, with statutory tax rate
of 25%. In 2010, Singlee Technology is regarded as a
High and New Technology Enterprise defined by Zhejiang
Finance Bureau, Administrator of Local Taxation of
Zhejiang Municipality and Zhejiang Municipal office of the
State Administration of Taxation and is therefore entitled
to 15% preferential tax rate from PRC EIT for three years
starting from 2010. Accordingly, the tax rate for Singlee
Technology is 15% for the years ended 31 December 2012
and 2011.

TN R R ER AT (AR R
AARRFPBEMMKL M EBAR A
5% EEBEMNB - R T —FF 57
BRI ENIVRE I 55 BT
BENMERMEALBMNTIATMBREHAZTR
EARMBMEE e T —TFRE
—FHEESTEPEMSHIS%ESRM
Kot BE_T——_FR_FT——F
TZA=T—HUEFERNRECHER
15% o
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86

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d)

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the
applicable tax rate of Hangzhou Singlee Software
Company Limited (“Singlee Software”), Singlee Software
(Zhuhai) Company Limited (“Singlee Zhuhai”), Beijing
Singlee Yin Tong Information Technology Co., Ltd.
("Beijing Singlee”) and Xin Yintong Technology Co., Ltd.
("Xin YinTong") is 25% for the years ended 31 December
2012 and 2011.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the Group had no estimated assessable profits arising from
Hong Kong during the years ended 31 December 2012
and 2011.

Friesim % (&)

BEFBRCEMEHRE HE-_T—=F
M _E——F+-_A=Z+—HILFE M
MERFEAEBR AR ([FAE]) 57
B (HRB)BERAA ([FHAKE]) -4t
REARBEERMBER LA (TR
M) RFEEBIEAR AR ([FERE])
LR EH25% o

HRAEERBE-_T——FR_FT——
FHt_ A=t HALFEYERBBEL
st R B N i B BB IS THAE
B -

The tax charge for the year is reconciled to the loss before REEBRBX HEGS 2EBRKZ 2R
tax per the consolidated statement of comprehensive ARSI < HER N T -
income as follows:
2012 2011
—E-——F —F——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AREFT
Loss before tax b B R0 5 18 (10,981) (37,409)
Tax charge at enterprise income tax rate A EFEFHMREI5%
at 15% (2011: 15%) (Note) (ZZ——F:15%)
AR ZBRIAX N (#:2) (1,647) (5,611)
Tax effect of income not taxable T RBIA Z TR 7 &
for tax purpose (1,227) (4,751)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR 2 M &
for tax purpose 875 403
Effect of different tax rates of EEEBNETRCZE
group entities (1,473) (2,583)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERAMREREE Y
difference not recognised MBEE 307 6,242
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERMIBERBEZ
MG R & 3,518 6,374
Tax charge for the year REEHIEZ H 353 74

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #TFIE4 (5£E) RHBERA
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE-—F——Ff+-_A=+—HIFE

9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d)

Note. Applicable income tax rate of 15% (2011: 15%) represents the
relevant income tax rate of Singlee Technology, the subsidiary of the
Company which generates majority of the Group's assessable profit.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately RMB55,698,000, available for
offset against future profits and deductible temporary
differences of approximately RMB20,405,000 in relation
to the impairment loss on intangible assets, inventories
written off, trade receivables written off and impairment
recognised on trade receivables. The unused tax losses
of approximately RMB12,066,000 would be expired in
2015, approximately RMB25,496,000 would be expired
in 2016 and the remaining amount of RMB14,072,000
would be expired in 2017. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to the unused tax losses and the
deductible temporary difference as it is not probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the unused
tax losses and the deductible temporary differences can be
utilised.

Friesim < (&)

Biat: BRAREHBEEI5% (ZZ2——4F:15% )N
ARIMBRAF AR Z AEMEHRE &
NABREBEEE KNS D ERT & F o

RRERAR NEENRSAH B EIB
# A/ N R®55,698,0007T ' 7] A 1E 3K 34
ARBEFRANBEREZBFOARE
20,405,0007T 1R £ R ML & E KR
BEEER EHMETE CHEEKESER
MBS RBERER 2 REBEER-
REB 2B BEIELOARE12,066,000
THER-_ZE—RAFHH mMHOARE
25,496,0007T 4 A = F — /N F BB LA K &4
TAR#14,072,000t R —E— 55
B o PN EEFETE JE SR BUR TS 7] AEE
SHABA 2B EE R A RS R ERE
MAEBL AL EBAREBHEEE KA
MRS EEEREEREEE-
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10. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 10. REEEIE

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging and AFEEBREMBR K (FTA) TFIEE:

88

(crediting) the following items:

2012 2011
—g-=-% T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTT AREFT
Salaries, wages and other staff benefits #H& - TEMREME TEF 20,978 17,702
Retirement benefits scheme contribution  iE K48 T 5t & 3 1,350 1,073
Equity-settled share-based Hﬁﬂ& i*"J«AHxTﬁFj
payment expenses AN BN 1,772 25,694
Total staff costs (Note a) BITKABE (Mita) 24,100 44,469
Depreciation of property, THE - BEK
plant and equipment HIBITE 1,135 635
Auditor’s remuneration Z BN B 2 426 444
Fair value change on investments BHIEEEZ
held for trading KRERREZET (363) 4,869
Operating lease rentals in respect of BHEMERENZ
rented premises KEHEHRES 3,880 3,258
Allowance on trade receivables FEUE 5 BR 5B 2,042 1,649
Recovery of trade receivables FEUE 5 BRFUB AR E B
previously impaired (3,503) (1,797)
Reversal of impairment loss BRECDwmRFEREEE
recognised on inventories (FTASHERA)
(included in cost of sales) (Note b) (B&Eb) (2,765) (1,577)
Cost of inventories recognised R RBAZ 2 FERAR
as an expense 2,632 2,067
Interest income B U A (2,097) (90)
Government grants X T #7 B
- subsidy related to products —EmfE it (7) (300)
- value-added tax refunds —IBERERB (573) (8)
Notes: Bt
a. Directors’ emoluments are included in the above staff costs. a. EEMEEFALMETHA-
b.  During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group had sold out b. #HEZZT—=ZF+-A=1+—HLEEE K&

the inventories at cost or above to customers which impairment loss
had been recognised in 2010. As a result, a reversal of write-down of
inventories of approximately RMB2,765,000 (2011: RMB1,577,000)
had been recognised and included in cost of sales for the year ended
31 December 2012.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #TFIE4 (5£E) RHBERA
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ—-F——F+-HA=+—HIFFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS M. EZ25MeE
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 7 (2011: ENENTERE (ZE——F:\H)
8) directors were as follows: EERZAZHMEL T
2012
—E-—fF
Retirement Equity-settled
benefits share-based
scheme payment
Fees Salaries contributions expenses Total
REEHE
RIKEF NRGRER
ne e HE 3 HREX st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT ARETT ANREFT ARE T
Executive directors TES
Mr. Hung Yung Lai RRRIE - 78 4 223 305
Mr. Cui Jian ERGE - 409 32 - 441
Mr. Qiu Lei BB 22 5L 4
(Resigned on (R=ZB—=F+-H
31 December 2012) =+—-HEE) - 409 65 31 505
Mr. Hung Ying i St - 409 4 139 552
Independent BUFHITES
non-executive directors
Mr. Pao Ping Wing BREEE 78 - - " 89
Mr. Tam Kwok Hing HEELE 78 - - " 89
Mr. Lo King Man ERNEE 78 - - 1 89
234 1,305 105 426 2,070
2011
—T——F
Retirement Equity-settled
benefits share-based
scheme payment
Fees Salaries contributions expenses Total
RiEEE
R IR 1A R A
e e SRR RFFEX st
RMB 00 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Hung Yung Lai femE Lt - 73 4 17,669 17,746
Mr. Cui Jian EREE - 73 4 - 77
Mr. Qiu Lei Bkt
(Resigned on (R=2—=F+=A
31 December 2012) =+—HEE) - 433 63 204 700
Mr. Hung Ying B - 379 2 205 586
Mr. Xu Shu Yi RErggs
(Retired on 11 May 2011) (R=B——F
RA+—HERE) - 22 1 - 23
Independent BUKHTES
non-executive directors
Mr. Pao Ping Wing AR LS 73 - - 22 95
Mr. Tam Kwok Hing HREE L& 73 - - 22 95
Mr. Lo King Man ERNEE 73 - - 22 95

219 980 74 18,144 19,417
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—ZF

— S ASf—AIEE

11. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the
management of the Company is in the process of re-
appointment of the Chief Executive of the Company and
therefore, there is no emolument for the Chief Executive
to be disclosed.

During each of the two years ended 31 December 2012,
no remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has
waived or agreed to waive any remunerations for each of
the two years ended 31 December 2012.

12. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
included three (2011:
Company, whose emoluments are included in the

two) executive directors of the

disclosures above. The emoluments of the remaining two
individuals (2011: three) were as follows:

1. EEME (£)

RE-B——F+-A=+—BILFEE
AATEREEESHELAATTHE
BT - UL AT AR B S T
HE -

HE - T——HF+-_A=+—HItMEAF
EEF AEEWEAEMNES AT HH
EBWSI EMAREE S MAREBE 2
B EREAEBB o HE - MEES
RERRAEREHZE-_ZT——_F+_A8
“t+—HIEMEFESFZ2EAME -

12. EEfE

AEERE G T ALIRE =R (22
——F MB)ARARTES  EFUE
AALNXEEROERP -BTIMBAL(Z
E——F ZR)Z2FMET:

2012 2011
=®F-=F —F—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREFT
Salaries and other benefits e kEAMETR 724 991
Contribution to retirement RKBHETEIHRK
benefits schemes 59 85
Equity-settled share-based P e 45 B AR 4D
payment expenses BEBRNFAZ 93 1,269
876 2,345
Their emoluments were individually within the HE @R, 2 M€ F 71,000,000 7T 2 &0
HK$1,000,000 band. E
During each of the two years ended 31 December 2012, BHEZZT——-F+-A=1+—HIEMEF

no remuneration was paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #TFIE4 (5£E) RHBERA
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 2 _F—

4 —=

S A=A

13. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

13. 3R E#E

BN BUERRTE

ARBEBEANEEERERNREEERT

2012 2011
—E-—F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® T AR FIT
Loss EiE
Loss for the purposes of basic and REAESRERK
diluted loss per share BEEiEcEE
Loss for the year attributable to 2NN 2 S N X )
owners of the Company FREE (11,334) (37,483)
2012 2011
—E-CF —E——%F
‘000 ‘000
TR Fhg
Number of shares BB EAR
Number of ordinary shares for RIEHEGREARREEE
the purposes of basic and BoLBREE
diluted loss per share 811,840 811,840

The computation of diluted loss per share for the years
ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 did not assume the
exercise of the Company's outstanding 2002 Option,
2007 Option, 2010 January Option, 2010 August Option,
2011 February Option (as defined in note 27) and the
Company’s warrant subscription rights which had been
expired in February 2012 (as defined in note 25) as
the exercise prices of those options and those warrant
subscription rights (up to the date they expiry) are higher
than the average market price of shares for 2012 and

BRARFB ZHERITE_EZE_FER
e —_ETLFERE 2 -ZF-AE
E T —TFNAERER_-T——
FABERE (EXAMTFE27)  mARF
LRBREERERE(ERZ2E—Z=F=A
) (EEAWE2) 2TEEaN=F
——FE2RHDFHETE BEFEEE=ZT
——FRZE——Ft+ZH=T—HLHF
EzBREEEERI M ERRERE (&
ZHINBA)RZERAREZTREEET

2011. fifo
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ-F——F+-A=+—HIFFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. T 8E -BERREE
Computer
Leasehold and related Other office Motor
improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
HE EER it
NELE HERE WAERE ] &it
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
AREFR ARETFR AREFT ARETFT AREFT
CosT K&
At 1 January 2011 R-E-——%-8-H 2,354 4,534 1,535 1,283 9,706
Additions #10 243 1,842 505 1,053 3,648
Redlassification BENE - @) (106) (390) (587)
At 31 December 2011 R-F-——F+-f=1+-H 2,602 6,285 1,934 1,946 12,767
Additions &0 521 617 30 8 1,176
Disposals BE - - - (380) (380)
At 31 December 2012 W=B--f+-B=+-H 3,123 6,902 1,964 1,574 13,563
DEPRECIATION g
At 1 January 2011 R-Z2——%-A—-H 2,354 2,995 1,127 918 7,394
Provided for the year TERE 21 391 121 102 635
Reclassification ENE - (82) (44) (93) (219)
At 31 December 2011 RZE-—5+ZA=+-A 2,375 3,304 1,204 927 7,810
Provided for the year RERR 163 548 333 91 1,135
Eliminated on disposals REERHHE - - - (342) (342)
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—F+-f=1+-H 2,538 3,852 1,537 676 8,603
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2012 R=B--f+-B=+-H 585 3,050 427 898 4,960
At 31 December 2011 RZZ-——F+ZA=1-A 27 2,981 730 1,019 4,957
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z -—ZF— —F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d) 14. FEIE -BEREHE (&)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of MEREENTHE BERREBER 2
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful fhEt Al e A F A A B X R T 71 F
lives and after taking into account their estimated residual SHERCAR - W E St RE A RIREE (N TF
value ranging from 5 to 10%, using straight-line method, 5210% ) :

at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of HEWMEEE HE
the term of FHIESF
lease or 5 years (ABEHEAE)
Computer and related equipment 20% - 30% B R ABRE 20%£30%
Other office equipment 20% =l N 20%
Motor vehicles 10 - 20% =R 10%%220%

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. B L EE

Development

costs
HEEA
RMB’000
ARMFT
COST R <
At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011 and RZET——F—H—H"
31 December 2012 —E——%F+=-A=+—8k
—E-——_H+-_HA=+—8H 12,889
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT B RRE
At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011 and H-_ZT——%F—H—H"
31 December 2012 —E-——H+TA=T—B8Hk
—E-—F+-A=+—H 12,889
CARRYING VALUES BRTEE
At 31 December 2012 and 2011 RZE-—ZFR_FT——F
+=—A=+—H -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE-—F——Ff+-_A=+—HIFE

16. INVENTORIES 16. FE

2012 2011
—E-——F —E——%F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR T AREFT
Finished goods B mn 417 440

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. BN E 5 & H b iR X
2012 2011
—E-——F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Trade receivables JEUE FBR 3K 19,990 13,078
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RERE R (6,276) (7,737)
13,714 5,341
Other receivables H 4th i UG BR 3R 4,233 3,030
17,947 8,371

HMBREERETEZRRETHAREEZR
R HERAAERZE REM-

Other receivables mainly include advance to staff for daily
operation, rental and utility deposits and others.

BTEPZEEH KRN F1202180K T
F o AN E AT IR R BB AP E R A B R
EER BEPEREREEH - HEERIE
AFMEFPH AEEGREXMANEP
ZEERFGEBECEEFP 2 EEERMEE

Customers are generally granted with credit period
ranging from 120-180 days. The Group may, on a case by
case basis and after evaluation of the business relationship
and creditworthiness, extend the credit period upon
customer’s request. Before accepting any new customer,

94

the Group conducts investigation or research on the
creditworthiness of the new customer and assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z -—ZF— —F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 17. BB S R EAMBRR (£Z)

AT TS HREWE SRR (HREE
BINBERAHE D 2RI DT

The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date
of trade receivables net of allowances at the end of the
reporting period:

2012 2011
—2-=F =T

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT

0 - 120 days 0Z 120K 8,114 4,171
121 - 180 days 121£180K 4,685 141
181 - 360 days 181%360K 915 1,029
13,714 5,341

BERAEEEKE ZFEFAASTER
BEHARKEI5000L (ZFE——F: AR

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are debtors
with the aggregate carrying amount of approximately

RMB915,000 (2011: RMB1,029,000) which have been past
due as at the end of the reporting period for which the
Group has not provided for impairment losses. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired:

#1,029,0007T ) 2 & AR 3R - I 5 B R
EEH - mAEEYE QR ERIERME - K
SEWEL DA ERFAEAERR-

EEMERREZEBEE ZEK Rk D

Mo

2012 2011
—E-—F —E——%
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR FT ARETFT
Overdue: 0 8
Less than 1 year DR1E 915 1,029

The remaining trade receivables which are neither past

BIARBHARBREZERESERETE

due nor impaired mainly comprise the receivables due BIEREBEERT 2BE KM EERT
from state-owned and local commercial banks with good 2 FEUBR 3K -

reputation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ-F——F+-A=+—HIFFE

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 17. EREZ R HEMERR (&)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts REBRESD
2012 2011
—E-=F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR TF T
1 January —H—H 7,737 7,885
Impairment losses recognised on B R E W RIE
receivables FEEE 2,042 1,649
Impairment losses reversed R EREEE (3,503) (1,797)
31 December +=ZA=+—H 6,276 7,737
Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are RIEBBLECHEARECEKE ZER
individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate @R AR ¥6,276,0000 (— T —— &
balance of approximately RMB6,276,000 (2011: AR®7,737,00070) - BBEH A LR
RMB7,737,000) of which the debtors were in financial B 2 o
difficulties.
Certain of the Group's trade and other receivables of REEETRERKE S REMBERHARE
approximately RMB504,000 (2011: RMB383,000) were 504,0007C (=T — — 4 : A R #383,000
denominated in US$, foreign currencies of respective TO) RSB EE 2 INEETTHIE

group entities.

18. LOAN RECEIVABLE 18. EWWE X
2012 2011
—E-——F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREFoT
Fixed-rate loan receivable JEUE BE R 3,645 4,080
Less: allowance on loan receivable B RN E SRR (2,040) (2,040)
1,605 2,040
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

= B 5 8 AR M AL

R E— A = —HILFEE

18.

19.

LOAN RECEIVABLE (Cont’d)

The loan receivable represents a loan of HK$5,000,000
(equivalent to RMB4,080,000) granted to Achieve Best
Investments Limited (“Achieve Best”), an independent
third party, which is unsecured and carries interest at 2%
per annum. The loan was originally due on 30 November
2010 and the Company extended the repayment date
of the loan to 30 November 2011 after evaluated the
potential business development with the independent
third party and assessed its credit quality by the directors.
During the year ended 31 December 2011, the repayment
date of the loan was further extended to 30 November
2012. Loan receivable will be repayable by instalments
up to 30 November 2012 and the first installment of
HK$500,000 (equivalent to RMB401,000) has been
settled on 22 March 2012. In 2011, in view of the fact
that the loan advance had been outstanding over a
year, no settlement was received during the year 2011
and the past incidents of extending the loan repayment
date, impairment loss of HK$2,500,000 (equivalent to
RMB2,040,000) was recognised after considering the
probable future cash flows. Subsequent to 31 December
2012, the Company received a partial settlement
amounted to HK$2,000,000 (equivalent to RMB1,605,000)
from Achieve Best.

18.

RWERR (&)

JEUN & FIE IR F B L 58 = J7 Achieve Best
Investments Limited ([Achieve Best])
< B 35,000,000 L (HERARK
4,080,0007T) - BEEE R EEA L F
FE2%FT B -ZERRITIN =T —FF
+T—RA=+RIH MEZFEEABLE
THAEZAXBRREBEOREBEEERFEE
Bx% ARABERZERRAEE-F
——F+—AZ+B -REBEE_T——F
TZA=+T—BLFE BERZERH
E-—HTEE—_E——Ft+—HA=1+H-fE
WEREDHEE & —HEXEHA
T —F+—-A=Z1+H -BEERAH
500,000/ 7t (#H% 7 A R #401,0007T)
ER - E——FZA-_t+-BHERM-B=
T——F AEERMAEENRMHOB
B—F MEAR-_Z——FRALEWIE
MERER MBTLERERERBHZ
=0 EERDIAIEERRBEL AL B
72,500,000/ 7T (£ A A R#2,040,000
T)REBE —E——F+-_fF=+—
H1& - 722 B 15 Achieve Best{& i1 3F 5 5
5 £ %8 /42,000,000 7T (FHE R AR
1,605,0007T) °

HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS 19. BIEEBRE
2012 2011
—E-——F —E——4%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ANREFT ARMEF T
Investments in unlisted fund ELFMESKE 660 2,242

The investments in the fund are denominated in US$, of
which 73% (2011: 92%) of the fund’s investments are
listed securities and liquid assets and the remaining 37%
(2011: 8%) is an unlisted security. The fair value of the
investments in the unlisted fund is estimated based on
the fund’s net asset value, representing mainly the quoted
prices of the fund'’s listed investments.

ZESZIRETUELFE EEKEF
BI3% (ZZE——F: 2% A LTEHK
MBEE BRT37% (ZF——%: 8%)
Blf—BIFLTESF FLTESKEZ
AhERESCEESFE NEEFRA
S ETMEEZREERBIBEMME -

—E-—FEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE-—F——Ff+-_A=+—HIFE

20. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT/BANK BALANCES

21.

AND CASH

The Group's bank balances and cash comprise bank
balances which carry interest at prevailing market saving
rates ranging from 0.2% to 0.5% (2011: 0.2% to 0.5%)
per annum during the year. The pledged bank deposit
carried fixed interest at 3.5% at 31 December 2011
(2012: Nil). The pledged bank deposit represented deposit
pledged to bank to secure a short-term bank loan which
was released during the year ended 31 December 2012.

Certain of the Group’s bank balances and cash
of approximately RMB153,000 and approximately
RMB1,357,000 (2011: RMB12,212,000 denominated
in US$ and RMB5,816,000 denominated in HK$) were
denominated in US$ and HK$, respectively, foreign
currencies of respective group entities.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

20. IR ITER RITEHRERES

REBZRTHEBKBERS RREFANRRIT
TS ERFERRO2EREOSE (2T ——
F:02BX05E) G B2 RITHE R - R
T——F+-_A=+—H8 BEBROTE
FREBISE(ZE——F :#)8-F
EIRRITF KRR REIR FIRTAERSEH
RITERZER ZBEREREBEE=ZT
—ZF+Z A=t —BHLFERRK-

NEBE B ARE153,000T X4 A
R#1,357,000c (ZZE——F: AR
12,212,000t 2 B A SE T HIE R A R
5,816,000 T A T HIE ) 2 & TIR1T4E
MRS TIZHBEEREE 2 INEEZTRE
TCEHE ©

21. BENE SR EMIRRK

2012 2011

—F-=F =T

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ T AREFT

Trade payables FERTE 5 BRAK 4,556 5,648
Deposits received from customers BEWEFIZE 41 806
Payroll payables JRE A<t B8 T %85 P 1,425 1,223
Other payables H b FE R 2,914 2,480
Total CE 8,936 10,157
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z -—ZF— —F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont’d) 2. ERES REMERR (&)

The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date of AT ERRENE SRRAZRERR

trade payables at the end of the reporting period:

gD ZHRER DT

2012 2011

—E-C-F —EF——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR FIT

Within 90 days 90K A 1,172 2,698
91 - 180 days 91E 180K 854 431
181 — 365 days 1812365K 489 -
366 — 730 days 366E730K 538 1,676
Over 731 days 731 KA E 1,503 843
4,556 5,648

AEBETEMNESREMERHDARE
100,0007T &2 A R #6396,0007C ( =& ——

Certain of the Group’s trade and other payables
of approximately RMB100,000 and RMB396,000
(2011: RMB1,423,000 were denominated in US$ F: ARM1,423,000 AETIERAR
and RMB337,000 were denominated in HK$) were #5337,0007C ABTLHIME ) o BIIZ B £ &
denominated in US$ and HKS$, respectively, the foreign ERZINEERTRBTTIIE -

currencies of respective group entities.

22. AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS 22. B{AESEFHE
2012 2011
—E-=f —T——4F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARMFT ARMEF T
Amounts due to directors BN EERIE 632 625

ZAREABTTRHE  RERR 2R RAR

interest bearing and repayable on demand. EREE-

The amounts are denominated in HK$, unsecured, non-
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ-F——F+=-A=+—HIFFE

23. AMOUNT DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER 23. BT RRERFIE

2012 2011
—E—-—F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT
Amount due to a shareholder, Goldcorp ~ JEf+— %4 % 5 Goldcorp
Industrial Limited Industrial Limited®) 5818 11 11

ZAREABTTAHE  RERR 2R RAR

. e sem
ZREE-

The amount is denominated in HK$, unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.

100

24. BORROWINGS 24. 88

2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®FrT AREFT
Secured bank loan (Note a) BB IRITER (M ita) - 43,244
Loans from a director (Note b) EEER(HED) 34,423 25,802
34,423 69,046

The borrowings are repayable as follows: BEAZUTHNEE:
2012 2011
=F-=F —F——F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®FT AREFT
Within one year —F R 2,405 44,317
Between one and two years —EWF 1,353 988
Between two and five years g 4,333 3,162
More than five years tBidhF 26,332 20,579
34,423 69,046

Less: Amount due within one year shown J&:ZBR—FRNEEZ S5

under current liabilities (P AEREBEE) (2,405) (44,317)
Amount due after one year BER—FREEZSHE 32,018 24,729
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE-—F——Ff+-_A=1+—HIFE

24. BORROWINGS (Cont’d)

25.

Notes:

(a)

At 31 December 2011, the secured bank loan was denominated in
HK$ and carried interest rate of Hong Kong Interbank Offer rate plus
3.3% per annum and fully repaid on 28 December 2012. The loan
was secured by the pledged bank deposit of the Group.

During the year, the Group obtained new unsecured loans from a
director, Mr. Hung Yung Lai, a shareholder with significant influence
over the Company, in the amount of RMB10,047,000 (31 December
2011: RMB25,802,000). As at 31 December 2012, loans with
the aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB28,612,000
carried fixed interest at 3.25% per annum and repayable in equal
month installments to July 2031, loan amount of approximately
RMB1,784,000 carried fixed interest at 3.25% per annum and
repayable in equal month installments to December 2032, loan
amount of approximately RMB3,048,000 carried fixed interest at
3.5% per annum and repayable in equal month installments to
December 2032, and loan amount of RMB979,000 is interest-free
and repayable in July 2013.

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, all the borrowings were

deno

minated in HK$.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITY

Derivative financial liability — warrant subscription

2. B8 (&)

25.

Brat -

(a)

R-T——F+-_A=+—8 AR\PERITER
AT ERFE RRITREREMIIEZF
MEHE BER-_E——F+-_A-+N\BHE2H
BE ZEEFUAEEZERBRITERAE
e

ER-AEER-RBEERBELLE (HAR
RIEBERFENZRE) ) MG HEEEKF
BEF 2B AARK10,047,0000t (=T —— 4
+TZA=+—H: AR®¥25,802,0007) - A =
T+ A=+—0 AEEENAAR
#28,612,0007T 2 BERIZF B3.25ET 8 AR
PEEIHEE B2 -_2=—F+7: 280
AR¥1,784,0007T 2 E FIZF B3.25E5 B
HEBASHEIHEE EE-_T=Z_F+=-7:
SEHARY3,048,0007T 2 BEFRIZF B3.5Et
B EBASHEIHEER BEE-T=_F1+=
A &8AARKEI7,0002EHREBEE AN
T-=—FLAEE-

RZE—ZFR-ZF——F+ZA=+—
B -AiAEEEHAETHE:.

TTEERAE

TTEsBMAE-AREIZIBE

rights
2012 2011
—E-—F —EF——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBFIT
Balance at beginning of year FHEER - 27,763
Gain on fair value changes AREEH N E - (27,763)
Balance at end of year FREERR - -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z - ZF— —F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITY (Cont’d) 5. A RARE (&)

102

Derivative financial liability — warrant subscription
rights (Cont’d)

The following table discloses the movement of the
warrants during 2011 and 2012:

Outstanding Outstanding
at 1.1.2011  at 1.1.2012

MEEMAE-RAREFTEE (&)

TREENR - T——FR-T—-F2R

B 8

Expired
during Outstanding
the year at 31.12.2012

R-ZB-Z%

R-ZB——% R-ZB-=f +=A

—-A—H -A—H =+—-H

e RATHE R AT EREH e R AT

‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000

F15 Fl7 Fi7 F7

Warrants RIEE 143,000 143,000 (143,000) -

On 20 August 2010, the Company issued to independent
investors 159,000,000 warrant subscription rights, for a
consideration of HK$0.03 each. A holder of a warrant
is entitled to subscribe for one ordinary share in the
Company at HK$0.60 per warrant from the date of issue
of the warrants to the expiry of the 18 months from the
date of issue of the warrants (i.e. 19 February 2012). Since
the warrant subscription rights are issued in HK$, which is
different to the functional currency of the Company, such
warrants are classified as derivative financial liability.

In 2010, registered holders of 16,000,000 warrants
exercised their rights to subscribe for 16,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company at the exercise
price of HK$0.60.

At 31 December 2012, the Company had no outstanding
warrants (2011: 143,000,000 warrants).

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #TFlE{4 (£E) RHBERA

—E—ZETFENAZFTH AXRANLE
DO.03B L2 REMBILIEE BT
159,000,00017 SR AR HE & 2 TR HEHE - SRARHE
BREAGEERREFLRITARERR
BEHTRISEAERAL (I ZE—=
FZATNAHE)  UEMHRKRERE.0E T
RE—RAQALBR -HRRBREER
BREUATET WIERARRZEE -
WMEBRAREEDDEAITESRHAR-
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE-—F——Ff+-_A=+1+—HIFE

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITY (Cont’d)

25.

Derivative financial liability — warrant subscription

rights (Cont’d)

Warrant subscription right

s were fair value using a

binomial option pricing model. The inputs into the model

were as follows:

TThEERas (&)

TEcMAEE-RAREFTEE (B

R EERBEIIA—EABREEER
BMRRE -BREZEABNT:

At issue date At exercise date 31.12.2011 31.12.2012

—E-—-f —E-CF

RETHHE RIT6E B +ZR=+—H +ZR=+—H

Share price RE HK$0.677C  HK$0.8 - 0.9/ T HK$0.33% T -
Expected volatility BRI 63.512% 56.992% - 60.387% 61.970% -
Expected dividend yield ~— BER S X 0% 0% 0% -
Risk-free interest rate ERRF = 0.288% 0.36% - 0.44% 0.177% -

The volatilities adopted were

based on average annualised

standard deviations of the continuously compounded rates

of return of the share prices

of the Company and three

comparable companies with similar business nature of the

Company as of the valuation dates.

26. SHARE CAPITAL

26.

WIET R AR TR MR ELER
TERAFARGERBRE 2 HEEA D
%2 FIFERELHE

[EEIN

Number of shares Amount
K& E nE
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-CF —E-—F —B-Zf —E2——-F
‘000 ‘000 RMB000 RMB 000
TR ik AREFT  AREFT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREBOET AR
Authorised: ETE
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BRTZA=1-H 10,000,000 10,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER:
At 1 January and 31 December R-—A—ARTZA=1+-H 811,840 811,840 8,132 8,132

—E-—FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z -ZF— —F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

Equity — settled share option scheme of the Company

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted on 27 August 2001 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and eligible employees,
and has been expired on 27 August 2011. Under the
Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company may grant
options to eligible employees, including directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in
the Company. The Scheme would be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing on the adoption
date and have come to its expiration. All other respects of
the provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force and
holders of all options granted under the Scheme prior to
such expiry shall be entitled to exercise the outstanding
options pursuant to the terms of the Scheme until expiry
of the said options. As a result, a new share option
scheme which was approved on 28 February 2011 (the
“New Scheme”), take effect immediately after the expiry
of the existing Scheme. The principal terms of the New
Scheme are similar with the Scheme.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders at the special general meeting of the
Company held on 28 February 2011 (the “SGM"), the
New Scheme mandate limit was refreshed so that the
Company was authorised to grant share options under
the New Scheme for subscription of up to a total of
81,184,000 shares, representing approximately 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
the SGM.

Under the Scheme, share options were granted on 8 April
2002 (“2002 Option”), 9 October 2007 (“2007 Option™),
19 January 2010 (“2010 January Option”), 16 August
2010 (“2010 August Option”) and 28 February 2011
("2011 February Option”) for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and eligible employees.
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27. URD B EBR N RS

RATzREGEBRESS

ApmlzElEE ([%A8]R_F
E-FN\A-TLERK TBENARK
BEFLAERER YER_FT——F
NAZ+EBE® REZTE AQF]
ExgnRAERRER (BREARA A
MEBARZER)RLBRE URBALQ
B - AT EIHEME B RER S
THEREEEM &t R Z AR
THSEEEEAR REZERLZ
PrEBRIEZFE AREREEA R
At Bl 2GR BHEERRITERETE
ZEElE BEERABRERDE - F R
—E-—F A+ N\BCEHENFE
2 ([#&t8]))  NEAEERRINE
R o Frat Bz = B R E %A BIARE M -

BEBRRER -_ZT——F A=+ N\BET
ZARRBRRERENAE ([REFIIAE])
BB ERARE FHE o RERSE
EEH SARQRERERENTERD
R TR & Z S 1£81,184,000% I
AR RRRRFR RS BEE #1T
BEAR4I10% ©

REZtE BRER T _FHAN
BT _FERE]) —ZTTLHF
TARB (ZZZL5BRE])  —F
—ZE2F-A+NB([ZE-FF— A
il ) —E-FEFENATAB([ZF
—EFNABKRE] ) R=F-——F_A
“HNB(ZE——F_ABKRE] ) &
H TZEMNAREELRAERERRH




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z -—ZF— —F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 27. U AERNRRK S (&)

(Cont’d)

Equity - settled share option scheme of the Company
(Cont’d)

At 31 December 2012, the number of ordinary shares
in respect of which options had been granted and
remained outstanding under 2002 Option, 2007 Option,
2010 January Option, 2010 August Option and 2011
February Option was 135,550,000 (2011: 141,380,000),
representing 16.7% of the total ordinary shares of the
Company (2011: 17.4% of the total ordinary shares) in
issue at end of the reporting period.

Under the Scheme and the New Scheme, the total number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect
of which options granted and may be granted to any
individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company's shareholders.

Options shall be exercised in the following manner:

Options granted to employees before 7 November
2002

e 1/3 of the options shall be exercisable after the expiry
of 6 September 2002;

e  Additional 1/3 of the options will be exercisable after
the expiry of 6 September 2003;

e  Additional 1/3 of the options will be exercisable after
the expiry of 6 September 2004.

_H.
S
al
N
%
#
2
'
&
=
#
Ell_f
(Bt
&

R-Z——F+-_A=+—0 5iEE
—ET_FERE ST CFERERE
TETHF-AERE- T —TFN
AEREN_ZT——F_ABERERD
BIORTECERERIR 2 ERBR
# B A135,550,0001) ( =& — — £
141,380,00017 ) (h AR ARG EIRE
TERREER2167% ( —F——4F 15
TEBRBERZ17.4% ) o

RIRZET B R FH 8 ML BEFSA QA
B REY IR AT HE /& - AR IR X AT IR H eV BB X
EMBETHNRMAS TREBEBARFD
AT BV 10% o fiaf I 8 7 AR R R BUR 5E
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Al TR B REEITEM S BEITHA
TEITOENHE  THEBEEARFEM
R E EITROM% °

BB AIRA T IETRE

R-BEZFE|—-FtHARTFESHE
KRE

s = BEREAR-ZFZE_FNA
NERITRE:

s FI=pZ—BEREAR_-_ZT=F
NARBIRITE:

s HRT=NZ—BREIXR_ZTOF
NAARNBRRITE:
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27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 27. Ut AEBNARR S (&)

106

(Cont’d)

Equity — settled share option scheme of the Company
(Cont’d)

Options granted to employees after 7 November
2002

e 5% of the options shall become exercisable upon the
6-months of the date of grant

e Additional 10% of the options shall become
exercisable upon the first anniversary of the date of
grant

e Additional 35% of the options shall become
exercisable upon the second anniversary of the date
of grant

e Additional 50% of the options shall become
exercisable upon the third anniversary of the date of
grant

Options granted to director on 28 February 2011

e 50% of the options shall become exercisable on the

date of grant

e Additional 50% of the options shall become
exercisable after expiry of 9 January 2012

Options granted to employees on 28 February 2011
e 50% of the options shall become exercisable on the
date of grant

e Additional 50% of the options shall become
exercisable after expiry of 12 January 2012

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #TFIE (5£E) RHBERA
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—ZF

— A= —AIEE

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

(Cont’d)
Equity — settled share option scheme of the Company PN
(Cont’d)

Under the Scheme and the New Scheme, the exercise

27. U BEBAF

A%’i’n—|

price is determined by the directors of the Company, and SETE -

will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price
of the Company's shares on the date of grant, (i) the
average closing price of the shares for the five business

days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the

nominal value of the Company’s share.

No consideration is payable on the grant of an option.

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

Option granted to employees before 7 November

IR % AT 8 et &l
BENMEROAR A RO RE G
Rz mE
AR EEX B 2 FHRME: Ri)AR
AR cEETRSE -

1TIE(E

X5 (&)

RAZRESHBRESTS (&)

HARAEE

(IR REEF LR

RN BEEMS Y ERNZAE-
B ARBERZFBOT:

R-EE-FL+-ALtAZHIRTFEEZ

2002 BRE

Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price
BREER = A BEHS TEH TEE
2002 Option 08.04.2002 08.04.2002 to 06.09.2004 07.09.2002 to 07.04.2012 HK$0.614
—ERECERERE 08.04.2002 08.04.2002%06.09.2004 07.09.2002%07.04.2012 0.6147& T

Option granted to employees after 7 November 2002

R-EBEE-_F+—-FtAZERFEEZ

BRE

Fair value

Option type Date of grant  Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price at grant date
REHBHZ

BRERR RiBH BEH TEH THE A
2007 Option 09.10.2007 09.10.2007 to 08.10.2010 09.04.2008 to 08.10.2017 HK$0.368 HK$0.2253
—ZTLFRRE 09.10.2007 09.10.2007208.10.2010 09.04.2008%08.10.2017 0.368% 7T 0.2253% 7T
2010 January Option 19.01.2010 19.01.2010 to 18.01.2013 19.07.2010 to 18.01.2020 HK$0.200 HK$0.1330
—E-TE-AERE 19.01.2010 19.01.2010£18.01.2013 19.07.2010%£18.01.2020 0.200%& 7T 0.1330% 7T
2010 August Option 16.08.2010 16.08.2010 to 15.08.2013 16.02.2011 to 15.08.2020 HK$0.840 HK$0.5289
—Z-Z2F )\ Ak 16.08.2010 16.08.2010%£15.08.2013 16.02.2011215.08.2020 0.8407% 7T 0.52897% 7T
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R E— = —HILEE

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

(Cont’d)

Equity - settled share option scheme of the Company

(Cont’d)

Option granted to employees on 28 February 2011

27. URODAERNRR S (&

FRRZRELEHBRESTS (F)

R-CE——F A=+ HBFEEZE

KRE
Fair value
Option type Date of grant  Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price at grant date
REHBHZ
BRERR R AH BEH TEH THfE MRE
2011 February Option
—E-—F_RERE
Granted to directors 28.02.2011 N/A 28.02.2011 to 09.01.2021 HK$0.7 HK$0.3308
KTE% 28.02.2011 TEA 28.02.2011%09.01.2021 0787 0.3308% 1T
Granted to directors 28.02.2011 28.02.2011 t0 09.01.2012 10.01.2012 t0 09.01.2021 HK$0.7 HK$0.3417
KTE% 28.02.2011 28.02.2011%09.01.2012 10.01.2012%09.01.2021 0787 034 7% T
2011 February Option
—E--F_RERE
Granted to employee 28.02.2011 N/A 28.02.2011 to 12.01.2021 HK$0.7 HK$0.3366
KTES 28.02.2011 TEA 28.02.2011212.01.2021 0787 0.3366/4 7T
Granted to employee 28.02.2011 28.02.2011 to 12.01.2012 13.01.2012 to 12.01.2021 HK$0.7 HK$0.3417
KTES 28.02.2011 28.02.2011£12.01.2012 13.01.2012%12.01.2021 0787 034 7% T
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ—-F——F+=-A=+—HIFFE

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 27. U AERNRR S (&

(Cont’d)

Equity — settled share option scheme of the Company AATZREEEBRESE (&)
(Cont’d)

The following table discloses the movement of the share TERBRENR_Z—_FrBERESZ

options during 2012:

Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited Expired Outstanding
at 1.1.2012 during year during year during year during year at 31.12.2012
R-ZB--% R-ZB--%
—-A—-H +ZA=t+-8
Option type BREER i RATE REARH RERTHE RERRK REARFH i RATE
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
F 7 F F F F
Granted to directors KTE%F

2002 Option “ZER-FRRE 3,180 - - - (3,180) -
2010 January Option —Z-SFE-ABRE 1,800 - - - - 1,800
2011 February Option T —F-AERE 65,000 - - - 65,000
69,980 - - (3,180) 66,800

Exercisable ARZE—Z4F
at the end of 2012 FERITE 65,900

Granted to employees RTEE

2007 Option —ERLERRE 27,020 - - - (300) 26,720
2010 January Option TR -ABRE 17,530 - - (1,550) 15,980
2010 August Option “T-ZEN\ABKRE 8,310 - - - (310) 8,000
2011 February Option —E——F_ABRE 18,540 - - - (490) 18,050
71,400 - - (2,650) 68,750

Exercisable AR-ZFE—Z4F

at the end of 2012 FERTE 56,760
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ—-F——F+-A=+—HIFFE

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS
(Cont’d)

27. URODAERNRR S (&

FRRZRELEHBRESTS (F)

Equity - settled share option scheme of the Company
(Cont’d)

TREBR - T——F 2 BRE S

The following table discloses the movement of the share

110

options during 2011:

Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited Expired Outstanding
at 1.1.2011 during year during year during year during year at 31.12.2011
R=B-——-% R=B-——-%
-A-H +ZA=Z+-8
Option type BREER i RATE REARH RERTHE RERRK REARFH i RATE
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
F i 7 i i 7
Granted to directors RTES

2002 Option TR FRRE 3,180 - - - - 3,180
2010 January Option “T-ZF-AEKRE 1,800 - - - - 1,800
2011 February Option —T-—F-AEkE - 65,000 - - - 65,000
4,980 65,000 - - - 69,980

Exercisable ARZE——%
at the end of 2011 FERITE 35,950

Granted to employees ZTEE

2007 Option DR FRERE 27,320 - - (300) - 27,020
2010 January Option E—TE - ARBRE 18,530 - - (1,000) - 17,530
2010 August Option “T-ZEN\ABEKE 8,990 - - (680) - 8,310
2011 February Option —T-—F-AERE - 19,260 - (720) - 18,540
54,840 19,260 - (2,700) - 71,400

Exercisable ARZE——%

at the end of 2011 FIEITE

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #TFlE{4 (5£E) RHBERA
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z -—ZF— —F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 27. U AERNRRK S (&)
(Cont’d)

Equity — settled share option scheme of the Company AATZREEEBRESE (&)
(Cont’d)
Options were priced using binomial option pricing model. ERESDA-EAERETERE{ERE-
The inputs into the model were as follows: R 2@ ABLT:
2011 February option
—E--F-ABRE
Granted to Granted to
directors employees
Ry¥E=S BTES
Share price iz B HK$0.687 7T HK$0.687 7T
Exercise price T(EE HK$0.77% 7T HK$0.77% 7T
Expected volatility T8 BR 18 69.858% 69.858%
Expected dividend yield TEEARR B =& 2.94% 2.94%
Risk-free interest rate R b X 3.272% 3.274%
The volatilities adopted were based on average annualised BE TR IR A A B K PO R A KB DL E TS R
standard deviations of the continuously compounded rates ABARRNHERRRENFEERESE
of return of the share prices of the Company and four MENTHFEREEFTH -
comparable companies with similar business nature of the
Company as of the valuation date.
In relation to the share options granted by the Company, BRI THERE NEEBERE
the Group recognised the total expense of approximately EE——F+A=Z+—HLEFEHE
RMB1,772,000 in cost of sales, distribution and selling A DEMEEERUALEEE RS
expenses as well as administrative expenses for the BEAXHABARY,772,000T (ZF——
year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: RMB25,694,000) F: AR#25,694,0007T) + & BRI &K
according to the function of the grantees. AZBBEEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ—-F——F+-A=+—HIFFE

28. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 28. HEAE
The Group as lessee AEBEREEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RHEHR AEEREEENRTAE M
commitments for future minimum lease payments under WA e EREREREES
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented RN EFBzomamT:

premises which fall due as follows:

2012 2011
=F—=F —F——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR FT
Within one year —F RN 1,918 1,368
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FRERF
(BREREME) - 584
1,918 1,952
Leases are negotiated and fixed for terms of one to two HESEHNTEERL—ZEME-
years.
29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29. BERRS
The Group entered into the following related party REERFANETUTHELIR S :
transactions during the year:
e Compensation of key management personnel e FEEHEEAEMS
The remuneration of directors and other members of REEEERFEEBREZKE 2B
key management during the year was as follows: 2T
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ABRBT T
Short-term employee benefits EHESREN 3,213 2,756
Retirement scheme contributions RIKAE FIET &K
benefits 296 211
Share options granted to directors REZNEERTZ
and employees i e 657 19,514
4,166 22,481
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ—-F——F+=-A=+—HIFFE

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 2. BERZRS (&)
e Rental expenses e HEMX
2012 2011
—E-=F —F——F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T ARBFIT
Rentals paid to Sing Lee SATE A s O
Pharmaceutical Import & Export BRABNMAE
Co., Limited for lease of office BUME®
premises 511 522
As at 31 December 2012, the Group had commitments RZE——F+_A=+—HB % T~—F
of approximately RMB256,000 (2011: RMB257,000) for Em—%@EEAR [HABHEL DS
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable BRAF] (AR ERZERFEE50%
operating leases for the next one year in respect of office EmlHEEHAZEGE)EERAE
premises with a related company, Sing Lee Pharmaceutical ¥ AREEFTVTABUE 2K LB &
Import & Export Co., Limited, which Mr. Hung Yung Lai L EEHAREERS AR EEFRED
has 50% equity interest with joint control in this entity. ANR®256,000 (ZF——F: ARK
257,0007T) °
30. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS 30. RIKER TS
The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme REEBEMBREENSEREEEIER
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets S AERTE - ZTEcEERAEH
of the scheme are held separately from those of the ZEEDFREE THEFSANESER-
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group REBMBRESTEIFMECHAABRAT
contributed 5% of relevant payroll costs to the scheme, BAZ5% A% FRB-ZZE——F A
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$25,000 2 7%25,000# 7T ( ZF — — 4 : 20,000/
commencing on June 2012 (2011: HK$20,000), which JC) e 8 2 L R IRHER -
contribution is matched by employees.
The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of REBTEFBRZEEE AHFPESZH T
state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by FeEsBRERRNBHETEIZKE -
the respective local governments in the PRC. The Group REBEBTMR AR ZEEB S ELART
is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll FrERFUERERECES -AEEY
costs to the schemes to fund the benefits. The only FElCEFERIEHEE 2 HR -

obligation of the Group with respect to these schemes is

to make the specified contributions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE-—F——Ff+-_A=+—HIFE

31. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

Country of

incorporation/
establishment/

Proportion of

ownership interest

Particulars of
issued and fully
paid share capital/

3. RABIMB AR 215

Name of company operation for 2012 and 2011 registered capital Principal activities
HRRY/ KL/ H-B-ZFR-B--F BRARBERE/
ARER 2EEX BREEIN AMEAZHE TEXE
Direct Indirect
B &
Sing Lee Electronics (B.V.I.) British Virgin Islands 100% - 715 shares of Investment holding
Co., Ltd. (“Singlee BVI")’ HBRIES US$1each  REER
Sing Lee Electronics (B.V.I.) TSR EBRAEE
Co., Ltd. ([##BVI |)" 1ETZ B
Singlee Software? PRC - 100% Registered capital Development and sales of
AR i US$4,325,500 software products, sales of
4,325,500% T related hard ware products
HRER and provision of software-
related technical services
REMHERGEM
HERBRHER
ARRHEBRIEE
BT
Singlee Technology? PRC - 100% Registered capital Development and sales of
CIEUESESE i US$6,714,000 software products, sales of
6,714,000% T related hardware products
HRER and provision of software-
related technical services
REMHERGEM
HERBRHER
ARRHEBRIEE
BT
Singlee Zhuha® PRC - 100% Registered capital Development and sales of
MR i US$1,250,000 software products, sales of

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED

FAEMS (KE) ROFRAF

1,250,000% 7T
AfER

related hardware products
and provision of software-
related technical services

REMHERGEm:
HERBRHER
URRBHEEE
BT




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z -—ZF— —F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

31. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 3. AR BB AR 2518 (&)
COMPANY (Cont’d)

Country of Particulars of
incorporation/ Proportion of issued and fully
establishment/ ownership interest paid share capital/
Name of company operation for 2012 and 2011 registered capital Principal activities
BRI/ KL/ R-B-—FR-Z--F BREORAZRE/
AR ER EEEXR BEEAL aMERZFHE TEEH
Direct Indirect
EE &
Beijing Singlee? PRC - 100% Registered capital Development and sales of
JEREAP i RMB1,000,000 software products, sales of
AR #1,000,0007 related hardware products
HMER and provision of software-
related technical services
REMBERHER:
HEREETER:
URRBHEEE
B RR %
Xin YinTong? PRC - 100% Registered capital Development and sales of
iR i RMB 100,000,000 software products, sales of
AR #100,000,0007 related hardware products
HMER and provision of software-
related technical services
RENBERHER:
HEREETER:
URRBHEEE 2
Bl RR %
1. Singlee BVI is a limited liability company incorporated in the British 1. FABVIAERBERHSHMKXIOBREE
Virgin Islands. NG
2. Singlee Software and Beijing Singlee are wholly foreign owned 2. HFANEGRIERFFNEEINERE-
enterprises.
3 Singlee Technology, Singlee Zhuhai and Xin YinTong are sino-foreign 3. EAEBEHARERFEBRATRBEK AT
equity joint ventures established in the PRC. INEEEERT
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at BEFERIL MECMAMKMEBARETE
the end of the year or at any time during the year. A EHE 5o
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z - ZF— —F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

32. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

R.EXREBEERERE
B

BEHOK

(a) ExEkRER

(a) Capital risk management

116

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
share capital, share premium, accumulated losses and
other reserves.

REBEBHEARMBRASEE
ERUNUFELE UEBEBLLARE
R AESpBERER AT XE—K@
W-BEFFER NEEBZEER
HRFTEE o

AEBZEARBERBREARTEEA
FEAEREAS (B AR B RS ~ B s (B
ZEtERMEMER)

The directors review the capital structure on a semi- EFETYF AR ELRER -ER
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors Bz —HMH BEETEEREARKAE
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated NEZMEFIEARER 2 R AEE
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations BIRBEES 23 FBRIMRE

of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.

BITHBARBTHESKELRIRE
BEHRRFEEEBERNRE

(b) Categories of financial instruments (b) &M T EEH

2012 2011
—E-C—F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFTT ARETFT

Financial assets THEE

Loans and receivables (including Bk ERFIE (BE

bank balances and cash) RITHEBRIES) 38,053 81,691
Held for trading investments BIEEERSE 660 2,242
38,713 83,933

Financial liabilities THEE
Amortised cost B SH A AR 43,961 79,033

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED  #FEX 4
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32. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK R.EXABEEREAREERNR

MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES BX (&)

(Cont’d)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and () SRIEMEEBENRBEE
policies
The Group's financial instruments include loan AEEZeRMIEAEBREERER JE
receivable, trade and other receivables, held for WESREMER BIEEFKRE
trading investments, pledged bank deposit, bank EEMRTER RTEHREES &
balances and cash, amounts due to directors, amount NEEEE ENRRSRE ENES
due to a shareholder, trade and other payables and REMBESUREE ZE2RMT A
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments ZHABEREWTRRE-HZE SR
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated TAMBEzREReETSRR (FX
with these financial instruments include market BB B R R E A EAR R )
risk (interest rate risk, currency risk and other price EFEERBRERBETER -G/
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on BB Z LR RSN T IR
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The [ & e % B 52 52 55 [ B LA T AR AT LA
management manages and monitors these exposures RREMZTAEREBE I ER-

to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk 5 R

(i) Currency risk () EER
The Group has foreign currency sales and KEBBINEHE RRE - B
purchases and certain receivables, bank balances SBETRKFIE RITHE
and cash, pledged bank deposit, trade and other R BEHEARTER EN
payables, amounts due to directors, amount due BOREMBER BRNESER
to a shareholder and borrowings of the Group B ENRERIEREENET
are denominated in United States dollar (“US$") (IExXHEBT(IET]) (Z
and Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), currencies other EEMWIFABRERERE 2T
than the functional currency of the respective B ) FHE - FAS BAREINE
group entities, which expose the Group to [B Bz o AR R B B IR A (] SN
foreign currency risk. The Group currently does HAHBE-AM EEEEER
not have a foreign currency hedging policy. SNERR  MEREZEHAREKN
However, the management monitors foreign By SN [ B o

exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure when the

need arises.
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N.EXBEcHBEAREEENR
B (&)

32. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and () tRERSEENREE (&)
policies (Cont’d)

118

Market risk (Cont’d) mEEE (E)
(i) Currency risk (Cont’d) () ErEgE (&)
The carrying amount of the foreign currency RIERARUINEFENEEE
denominated monetary assets and monetary EREBEENREBENT
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:
2012 2011
ot Y —E——F
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
gE =L EE AE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB 000
AEETRE  AREFTZT  ARKFT  ARETFRT
us$ ey 1317 630 14,837 1,423
HK$ BT 2,962 35,462 7,856 70,019

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #TFIE{4 (£E) RHBERA
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32. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)

(i)

Currency risk (Cont’d)

The following table details the sensitivity to
a 5% (2011: 5%) change in the RMB against
US$ and HK$. The 5% (2011: 5%) represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in the foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analyses of the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk at the end of the
reporting period have been determined based on
the adjustment of translation of the monetary
assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% (2011: 5%) change in foreign
currency rates. A (negative) positive number
indicates an (increase) decrease in the post-tax
loss where RMB strengthens against US$ and
HKS$. For a 5% (2011: 5%) weakening of RMB
against US$ and HK$, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the post-tax loss.

N.EXBREcHBEAMREEENKR
BEE (&)

() EREAKREEBNREE (&)

T mE (E)
() E¥mEbE (%)

TRAVNAEEHARBEHET
NABTEXREEH% (ZF——
Fi5%)MBUERE -Z5% (—F
—TF 5% ) HEEENFHEI
P [E R i) & 38 A] BE 2D A5 BRI Y
BEREL R -NRE AR K
£ B HMNE LB 0 BURE D AT T
AERHEPREREERAGBR
SNEETE R 5% B8 (—ZF ——
F5%)ZBMEZHE (AL
ERBRARE L ETIETITE
BHYRBHRER (BN A
RESETRETRZESS (ZF
—— % :5%) RIS R B IRE
PREICRIFE 2 K

2012 2011
=®F-=F —F——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AR FIT
(Increase) decrease in Mriii& B 1a
post-tax loss (i) (B an) R A )
If RMB strengthens against US$  fifi A R ¥ H ST FHE (35) (570)
If RMB strengthens against HK$ fifi A R ¥ % BT HE 1,626 2,641

(i) This is mainly attributable to the net exposure to
outstanding foreign currency receivables, bank balances
and cash, pledged bank deposit, trade and other
payables, amounts due to directors, amount due to a
shareholder and borrowings in US$ or HK$ at end of the
reporting period.

(i) WHTEAREREHRARTH
FEURSNEE  SRITHE BRI ® - BT
RITER ENESREMERR - JE
NEERE BNBRRFARET
B TTEEME Y 2 R BRFE -

—E-—FEH
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32. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK R.EXRARKREHEAREEENR
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES BE (&)
(Cont’d)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and () 2RIEAKEEBENRBER (&)

120

policies (Cont’d)
Market risk (Cont’d)
Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate loan receivable (see note 18
for details), fixed-rate pledged bank deposit (see note
20 for details) and fixed-rate unsecured loans from a
director (see note 24 for details).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to floating rate bank balances
(see note 20 for details) and secured bank loan (see
note 24 for details). The management will consider

TEmE (E)
T & 7 g & HE

AEBARZBEESRKER (FBER
fisE18) - EREIMBITER (FBR
fi3E20) RESEIEMREREE (FH
HER2HANE24)BRAZARER
T ER -

Zl»‘*@ﬁ%%ﬁfﬁ/%ufﬁﬁ &8k (5F
BERMEE20) RBEMRRITER (u$|E

BEHEWE24) RS REF KA

Eﬁﬂﬁﬁé%gﬂ%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ

hedging significant interest rate exposure should the i o
need arise.
Interest rate sensitivity analysis Fl G 7R JZ 77 T

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to variable interest rate
for non-derivative instruments at the end of the
reporting period. For variable-rate interest bearing
financial assets and borrowing, the analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of asset and liability
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 10 or 50 basis
point represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rate in interest
bearing financial assets and liabilities respectively.

If interest rates had been 10 or 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’'s loss for the year ended
31 December 2011 would increase/decrease by
RMB199,500. For the year ended 31 December
2012, the Group has no floating rate secured bank
loan and has insignificant amount of floating rate
bank balances, no sensitivity analysis is presented
accordingly.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #TFIE4 (5£E) RHBERA

T SREED W IIREIESTE T AR
ﬁ%%ﬁ & RIS 203 BRI K R B i
TRIRFEEF B EERE
F&FEﬁ—'“ﬁEF“ﬁﬁiﬂ
MERBEZAEEEERABESERN
BENREEMHEE - 10550515
EEESRETEeREEREET
K7 BB R ATERIFTE

i 7 WL%/TE%O?%O%%S ipsis
FEHBERERFITE MAEEHE
:ZQ——¢+*H:+—EI¢¢F§*E’\J
BRI M, R ARK199,500
TBE_T-_H+_HA=+—H
WHEE AEBEYETESEEMRT
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NR.EXBREcHBEAMREEENKR
BEE (&)

32. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

() EREAKREEBNREE (&)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d) mEE k()
Other price risk H (B 157 %

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in unlisted funds. The sensitivity analyses
have been determined on the exposure to the market
price risks at the end of reporting period. If the prices
of the investments in unlisted funds had been 5%
higher or lower, the post-tax loss for the year ended
31 December 2012 would decrease or increase by
approximately RMB33,000 (2011: RMB112,000)
respectively as a result of the changes in fair value of
held-for-trading investments.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’'s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets,
which is stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The directors continuously evaluate the
creditworthiness and financial strength of the
counterparty of the loan receivable as well as
considering potential business development of the
counterparty. The term of the loan receivable is
stipulated in a loan agreement. The loan receivable
due from the counterparty is a private entity which
engaged in research and development of software.

REBERIFELEMESIREMAERA
EBREAR NEEERBREBHAROT
BERRRETHUXRE DT WSE
FEMESEBRENER LA ST R
5% BE_T——F+ZA=+—
AEFEMNBRBEESSERBEER
BEREDNRBEES MR DKL MNOA
R#33,000L(—E——F: ARK
112,0007C) °

=EEmE

RZEBE——F+-_A=+—8 K&
BAXSHFREBITERERESE
B BEATEY & ANEERBIR
BREEHMBRARATHERBE ER
CRMEEZEAE-

EEERANEREERZE T Z
EERMREN TEEEEHF
BEZAREREN BRERZIF
HEERBETRE REKRZHE
FHRBESRME XZHFR/LA
NAE] T
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32. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK NR.EXRAREREHEAREEENR
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES BER (&)
(Cont’d)

(0 *REAREEANRBE (&)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and

122

policies (Cont’d)

Credit risk (Cont’d)

The Group also has policies in place to ensure that
sales of products are made and services are provided
to customers with an appropriate credit history and
the Group assesses the credit worthiness and financial
strength of its customers as well as considering
prior dealing history with the customers. Generally,
customers are granted with credit periods from 120-
180 days and the Group usually does not require
collaterals from its customers. An ageing analysis of
trade receivables is set out in note 17. Management
makes periodic individual assessment as well as
collective assessment on the recoverability of trade
receivables based on historical payment records, the
length of the overdue period, the financial strength
of the customers and whether there are any trade
disputes with them. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group has a concentration of credit risk as 100%
(2011: 100%) of the loan receivable was due from a
single independent third party. The Group has further
concentration of credit risk as 31% (2011: 32%)
and 63% (2011: 66%) of the total trade receivables
was due from the Group’s largest customer and the
five largest customers respectively in the provision of
software-related technical support services business
segment.

The credit risk of the Group on liquid funds is limited
because the majority of the counterparties are state-
owned banks and local commercial banks with good
reputation.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #TFIE{4 (£E) RHBERA

EEmpE (&)

REB T AR ERBREmEE IR
BREHRTAEEEGELENETS
mMAEBTETIHEFPNEELERK
HBEENARZEEEAREFPHBER
St -BF —MERNMN1208 7
180HMEEH  MASE —RTEK
EPRHEER BEEKRESERD
REROMERMHE17 - EBEETHE
BZENRL SRR MBEE
NREGHEERSFH HeeglE
FEWE 5 BR 57T Bl 2 B B2 (R B R
H-REME  AARESERALEE
ZEERBERKEE-

AEBERZEEETRRE REZ
100% (=T ——F:100% ) Z JEU
BRI AR —EZBULE=FRE R
I AEBAARREEE—SRFEES
FRER BRE31% (T ——F:
32% ) K63% (ZE——F:66% )2
EWESHEBEBESIBAEE &
AEERAEEZAAEFREA I
ZREIE HHIE TP RIR HE A E R
M ERG 2 EEDH0-
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32. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

N.EXBREcHBEAMREEENKR
BEE (&)

() EREAKREEBNREE (&)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Cont’d)

Liquidity risk

As set out in note 2, the Group is currently
dependent upon the continuing financial support
from the shareholder with significant influence over
the Company and additional external funding to
meet in full its financial obligation as they fall due
for the foreseeable future. With the support from
the shareholder with significant influence over the
Company and the additional external funding, the
management of the Company consider that the
Group’s liquidity risk has been reduced.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

G RE2FTEL - MR TR R MR - AR [E
NAKBHARNRRBEERTZEN 2K
RUEBETHHER RBINZINK
BovHBXR UENIBZMB
EE-EEHARRABEATENZ
BRREINZINKES ZXFF AR
AIEEERA ARRZRDESRA
RO EET

MEBEE R FERREE &

TE/AKEZTEHESRAR
BRTERIMBZFE - ZRIIZE
TREERAEERZR A RERKER
ZAMZARMBRRSREE LR
JIFIE R EBRERE
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32. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

() *REREEENREE (£)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and

124

policies (Cont’d)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (Cont’d)

MEBEEZRFERBEEEZR (/&)

Liquidity risk table T J7l b & FE 7
Weighted ~ On demand Total
average  or less than Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flows amount
miE EP S AEREE

TR = -FREER - L FEBE REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
AREFT  AREFT AREFT AREFZT

2012 —E-CEF
Trade and other payables ERE S RAMER - 8,895 - 8,895 8,895
Amounts due to directors ENESERE - 632 - 632 632
Amount due to a shareholder B A% B 7B - " - 1" 1
Loans from a director EEEX 3.3% 3,476 57,319 60,795 34,423
13,014 57,319 70,333 43,961

2011 —E——F%
Trade and other payables ERESRAMER - 9,351 - 9,351 9,351
Amounts due to directors ENESERE - 625 - 625 625
Amount due to a shareholder  FEfTARE B - 11 - 11 11
Bank borrowing RITEE 3.6% 44,800 - 44,800 43,244
Loan from a director EEEHX 3.3% 1,070 34,480 35,550 25,802
55,857 34,480 90,337 79,033
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32. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK R.EXRARKREHEAMREEENR
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES B (&)
(Cont’d)
(c) Financial risk management objectives and () *tRERSEENREE (&)

policies (Cont’d)

Fair value RAE

The fair value of derivative instruments is calculated ?ETEI,E\Z DR EERESE W
using quoted prices. Where such prices are not ZEEE AR BERFEAFRETE
available, fair value is determined by applying IE:E%(HE Az 2 dgETHE
discounted cash flow analysis using the applicable RenEDMET MBENTETA
yield curve for the duration of the instruments for AR EERAETINTERSEN
non-optional derivatives, and option pricing models EDMETE -

for optional derivatives.

The determination of fair value of investments in EERIEFEEHFLMESREARE
unlisted fund held for trading is disclosed in note 19. BIFEIS - AP 198 55 -
The fair value of other financial assets and financial HtemEERemABE (TRER
liabilities (excluding held for trading investments and EEE ?xﬁ&MEI/E:)Z”D\LETE?E
derivative instruments) is determined in accordance AREBEAUFTER S REDNE
with generally accepted pricing models based on JE °
discounted cash flow analysis.
Except as detailed in the following table, the directors BRTIRFOEIN NRARESRA
of the Company consider that the carrying amounts REERARENGEM B HRENE
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded MEERERBENREAERE AR
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial (EREE
statements approximate their fair values.
Carrying values Fair values
REE M
2012 2011 2012 2011
~%--f% %% -%-F ZFF
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ABBTRE  AREFT  ARETT  ARETFT
Loans from a director BEER 34,423 25,802 24,318 19,721

Annual Report 2012 —Z——FF 125




126

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M maRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ-F——F+=-A=+—HIFFE

32. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK NR.EXRAREREHEAREEENR
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES BER (&)
(Cont’d)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and (o)
policies (Cont’d)

Fair value (Cont’d)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to loss on
initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1
to 3 based on the degree to which the fair values is
observable.

. Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
market for identical assets or liabilities.

e level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #TFIE{4 (£E) RHBERA
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—-F——F+-A=+—HIFFZF

32. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Cont’d)

Fair value (Cont’d)

e level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that include
inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

N.EXBREcHBEAMREEENKR
BEE (&)

(c)

EHEABEEANREE (&)

RAME(E)

s FEZERRAREFENEREE
FBEZBAELIFRIEAESR
ZTBEE (BXRRcBAER)
(F=ZER) -

2012
—E-Cf
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-ER EZER EZEHR &
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARBEFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Financial assets at FVTPL BREREAABNEREE
Held for trading investments BEBERE - 660 - 660
2011
-FF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-ER E-ER EZER Rt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANREFIL ANBEFT ANREFIL ANBEFIL

Financial assets at FVTPL BRERBAABNEREE

Held for trading investments BIEBERA

2,242 - 2,242

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the
current year.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of
derivative financial liability is disclosed in note 25.
Of the total gains for the year included in profit or
loss was Nil (2011: approximately RMB27,763,000)
relates to derivative financial liability held at the end
of the reporting period. Fair value gain on derivative
financial liability is included in “Other gains and
losses”.

AERE-—BEMRFE_EBRZMELE
Efa] e -

FE-ERTESREEAREME
ZHEWBEBRWE25 T ABRZF
AR ERERANAREST L (ZF
——4F: AR¥27,763,00070) SR
REMABAEZITESRABE -TTE
CREBEZAABRSZEHATHM
Wzt kBB A e
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33. SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF 33. XA T BERBE

128

THE COMPANY

2012 2011
=F-=F —F—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AREFT
Property, plant and equipment TENE BB Mk 16 23
Interests in subsidiaries NSNS - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries NI O] 31,380 69,501
Current assets MEEE 3,877 10,252
Current liabilities mENBE (5,030) (46,140)
Non-current liabilities ERBAEE (32,018) (24,729)
(1,775) 8,907
Share capital % A< 8,132 8,132
Reserves (Note) B () (9,907) 775
(1,775) 8,907
Note: Biat -
Share
Share options Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
R EE W R RitEE A&t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR F T AREFT ARKTFT
At 1 January 2011 R-_ZE——F—HF—H 151,770 11,416 (149,273) 13,913
Loss and total comprehensive AFEEBELEEAR
expense for the year A 485 - - (38,832) (38,832)
Recognition of equity-settled BRREEE ARG &
share-based payments ERAR - 25,694 - 25,694
At 31 December 2011 RZE——%
+=—A=+—H 151,770 37,110 (188,105) 775
Loss and total comprehensive REFEEEREZA
expense for the year Bl 4278 - - (12,454) (12,454)
Recognition of equity-settled ERREEEARG &
share-based payments AR - 1,772 - 1,772
At 31 December 2012 R-T——%F
+=—A=+—H 151,770 38,882 (200,559) (9,907)
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